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December 2, 2020

To the Residents, Board of Directors, and Madison Area Technical College District:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Madison Area Technical College District 
(the District or Madison College) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, and 2019 is hereby 
submitted.  Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of 
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. To the best of our knowledge and 
belief, the presented data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner 
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and 
account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.  

This report is consistent with the State of Wisconsin’s legal reporting requirements. In our opinion, it
was prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis 
consistent with the preceding year. In addition to meeting legal reporting requirements, this report is 
intended to present a comprehensive summary of the significant financial information of the District 
in a readable format to meet the varying needs of the District’s residents, taxpayers, students, 
employees, financial institutions, intergovernmental agencies and the State of Wisconsin Technical 
College System.

The CAFR is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The introductory 
section includes this transmittal letter, information regarding the College’s board members, and an 
organization chart. The financial section includes the management’s discussion and analysis, the 
report of independent certified public accountants, the basic financial statements, notes to financial 
statements, required supplemental information, and additional financial information. The statistical 
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-
year basis. 

Madison College is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of 
the Single Audit Act of 1984 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the 
State of Wisconsin Department of Administration publication, State Single Audit Guidelines. 
Information related to the requirements and compliance with this single audit will be established at 
some future date.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires that management provide a 
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the 
form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  Madison College’s MD&A can be 
found immediately following the independent auditor’s report.
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Profile of the Madison College District

Madison Area Technical College was first chartered as the Madison Industrial School in 1912, 
enrolling 63 students in its first classes. In 1917, the federal Smith-Hughes Act provided additional 
funding for vocational education, and the Madison Industrial School became known as the School 
of Vocational Education. Attendance continued to grow as the result of state legislation enacted in 
1933 requiring compulsory education until the age of eighteen, which served to increase the 
number of students enrolled in high school and opened space at the vocational schools for more 
adult students. These changes in focus resulted in another name change in 1937 to the Madison 
Vocational and Adult School.  Increasing state control and budgetary difficulties led to legislation, 
enacted in 1965, requiring the formation of vocational districts by 1970. The Area Vocational, 
Technical and Adult Education District No. 4 was legally organized on July 1, 1967, under the 
provisions of Chapter 292, Laws of Wisconsin 1965. Its name was changed in 1992 to Madison 
Area Vocational, Technical and Adult Education District, and in 1994 to Madison Area Technical 
College District.

The District is composed of almost all of five counties (Dane, 
Columbia, Jefferson, Marquette, and Sauk) and parts of seven 
other counties (Adams, Dodge, Green, Iowa, Juneau, Richland,
and Rock). There are 225 municipalities and 40 public school 
districts within the District’s boundaries. The District contains 
4,414 square miles, an equalized valuation for fiscal year 2019-
20 of $94,997,912,017, and an estimated District population in 
2020 of 798,053. The District operates campuses in six cities: 
Columbus, Fort Atkinson, Madison, Portage, Reedsburg, and 
Watertown. Educational offerings are also provided at many 
other locations throughout the District.

Governance

The governing body of Madison Area Technical College District is the District Board, which consists of 
nine members. The members are appointed to staggered three-year terms by the county board 
chairpersons of the twelve counties in the District who meet once a year to appoint three members. 
The District Board membership categories include two employers, two employees, three additional 
members, one school district administrator, and one elected official who holds a state or local office. 
The District Board powers, which include the authority to levy property taxes and borrow monies, are 
established under the provisions of Chapter 38 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Current members of the 
Madison College District Board are shown on page 12.

Services

Madison College provides practical and timely education through a comprehensive array of academic 
offerings, including occupational degrees, a robust liberal arts curriculum, adult basic education, and 
extensive offerings to serve business and industry and lifelong learners. The College offers associate 
degrees, technical diplomas, certificates, apprenticeship, professional and non-credit, courses, digital 
badges, and more that cover some 150 programs of study. In addition to serving the credit and 
credential seeking student, Madison College also offers extensive and relevant options to businesses 
via customized training and lifelong learners via professional development and enrichment courses. 
Madison College also serves international students, offers study abroad options, and is home to new, 
unique opportunities for high school students to earn college credits or credentials. A prime example of 
this is the Early College STEM Academy, wherein high school students attend Madison College full 
time during their junior and senior years and complete high school requirements while earning college 
credits or credentials.
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Madison College has been a leader in online and remote instruction for over 20 years. This past 
year, our portfolio of online and remote options has expanded greatly due to the impact of COVID-
19. Engaging and convenient online options, both synchronous and asynchronous, ensure that
students can continue their education from anywhere, no matter what the world throws at us.

The learning opportunities provided by Madison College are essential for a new workforce that is 
technically prepared, but also adaptable, and willing and able to learn and grow as industries and 
jobs change. What we offer and how we offer it is in constant flux, always evolving to meet the 
needs of a more diverse student, employer, and stakeholder market. Our academic portfolio aims 
to meet these diverse student needs by making higher education and lifelong learning accessible, 
affordable, and high-quality, delivered by the best faculty anywhere. 

Strategic Plan
Mission

Madison College provides open access to quality higher education that fosters lifelong 
learning and success within our communities.

Vision

To be the leader in accessible, affordable education that meets the evolving needs of our diverse 
communities.

Value

Excellence, respect, commitment to students and diverse communities, and making higher 
education available to all.

Strategic Directives

! Focus on Successful Outcomes for Students
! Ensure our Sustainability
! Support our Faculty and Staff
! Address Student Preparedness
! Align with Community Needs
! Improve Recruitment and Strategic Outreach

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the District operates.

Local Economy

The Madison area continues to fare better than the national economy in terms of 
unemployment. According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), the adjusted Madison Metropolitan 
Area’s unemployment rate (not seasonally adjusted) increased from 2.6% in May 2019 to 9.5% in May 
2020. In comparison, the Wisconsin and U.S. rates for May 2020 were 11.9% and 13%, respectively.
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The overall Midwest Region consumer price index rose 0.4% from June 2019 to June 2020, 
compared to a national increase of 0.6% over the same period.

The Wisconsin REALTORS® Association reported in July 2020 that existing Wisconsin home sales 
decreased in June 2020 by 3.1% compared to June 2019, with prices increasing by 4%.1 In the 12-
county South Central Wisconsin region, existing home sales decreased 7.8% over the 12 months 
ending June 2020. During that time, the median sale price in the region remained the same, at 
$260,000. Housing values are set for tax purposes in January of each year, and those values 
reported to taxing authorities the following fall are used for computing taxes, which are billed to 
property owners in December.

Legislative Climate

Presently, Wisconsin has a Republican-led legislature and a Democratic governor. After passing a 
biennial budget in June 2019, there was little policy-making occurring through the legislative 
process as there was no strong consensus in fall 2019 between the legislature and governor on 
what issues to address.

In March 2020, a broad public health response to the COVID-19 pandemic began in Wisconsin. 
Federal policymakers, recognizing declines in state revenues and increased expenditures for 
education institutions, provided financial resources to higher education institutions directly and to 
the governors of each state. Between the direct federal funding received and the federal funding 
allocated by the governor, Madison College recognized $6.9 million in total, $4.1 million of which is 
available to support college operations. The remaining balance of $2.8 million is to be provided 
directly to students.

In anticipation of declining state revenues, in April 2020, the governor directed select state 
agencies to plan for reduced expenditures of 5% in fiscal year 2019-20. This reduction did not 
impact state funds anticipated to be received by the College. 

In March 2020, the WTCS State Board approved a tuition increase of 1.75% for degree credit 
students in the 2020-21 academic year.

The College will continue to monitor the planning activities and financial condition of the State of 
Wisconsin. A new legislative session begins in January 2021 with newly (re-)elected lawmakers. At 
that time, the governor and legislature could make adjustments to the fiscal year 2020-21 budget if 
needed to balance the state’s budget. Additionally, the governor will introduce the 2021-2023 
biennial budget in February 2021.

Institutional Successes

Following are a few of the many successes Madison College and its students have achieved during 
the last year:

! The most recent Graduate Employment Report, which surveys graduates six months after
graduation, indicates that 92 percent of Madison College graduates find jobs within six
months of graduation. Of those, over 80 percent are employed within the District, and 94
percent are employed within Wisconsin. The average monthly salary for a Madison College
graduate in a position related to their degree is $3,484.

1 WI home sales figures are highly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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! In May 2020, Madison College received a $1,055,284 grant award from the National
Science Foundation for the Center for Renewable Energy Advanced Technological
Education Resource Center (CREATE RC). The main goal of the CREATE Resource
Center is to advance the field of renewable energy by supporting two-year college
renewable energy programs. The grant will serve high school educators in addition to two-
year college instructors, helping to create bridges to higher education. It will also draw new
institutions to the NSF community, including business and industry partners, to help
establish and strengthen renewable energy career paths. With women in prominent roles
among the project’s leadership team and as part of the professional development activities
aimed at faculty, the Center will also help to diversify the workforce in the engineering and
energy fields.

! Board licensure:

Program
Madison College

Pass Rate
National

Pass Rate

Advanced Emergency Medical Technician 79% 62%
Associate Degree Nursing 95% 88%
Certified Paralegal 2 N/A N/A
Dental Hygiene 94% 95%
Emergency Medical Technician 84% 69%
Medical Assistant 78% 63%
Medical Laboratory Technician 100% 81%
Occupational Therapy Assistant 100% 89%
Optometric Technician 100% 76%
Clinical Ophthalmic Assistant 100% 79%
Paramedic 70% 72%
Physical Therapy Assistant 3 TBA TBA
Radiography 100% 89%
Respiratory Therapist 91% 78%
Surgical Technologist 75% 73%
Therapeutic Massage 90% 71%
Veterinary Technician 90% 71%

Long-term Financial Planning

Technical education in the 21st century is characterized by limited resources, significant outlays for 
high technology equipment, constantly changing enrollments due to fluctuating unemployment 
rates, and a changing population, which requires different instructional delivery and other support 
systems. The District Board has responded to these challenges by developing financial policies 
that emphasize the District's long-term financial stability, address college ’stakeholders’ needs, 
and maintain financial flexibility.

2 Testing for the Certified Paralegal program is optional. No testing occurred in 2019-20.
3 An updated figure for Physical Therapy Assistant has not been given yet.
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As part of these policies, Madison College is required to maintain budgetary basis fund balance in 
the operational funds (General and Special Revenue) at or above the following levels: 

! assignments for encumbrances, prepaid items, and noncurrent assets equal to the related
financial statement items,

! assignment for compensated absences equal to estimated potential annual payouts,
! assignment for state aid fluctuations equal to 10 percent of funds budgeted for general

state aid,
! assignments for subsequent year and years, which may not exceed 5 and 10 percent of

funds budgeted for general state aid, respectively.
! assignment for operations representing the potential deficit for an unexpected reduction in

cash flow, generally between 16.6 and 25 percent of the ’District’s operational budget.

Current plans and long-term projections predict continued compliance with these Board 
guidelines.

The Board also requires a capital budget that meets the capital needs of the District. In addition to 
the above-mentioned 10 Year Facility Master Plan, annually the District prepares a three-year 
facilities plan for Board approval and submittal to the Wisconsin Technical College System 
(WTCS). During Fiscal Year 2020-21, Madison College plans to borrow $35 million for capital 
projects.

Madison College’s Smart Future Building Plan

Over the course of 2008 to early 2009, Madison Area Technical College (Madison College) 
prepared a Facilities Master Plan for its seven campuses. That inclusive campus planning process 
regarding the District’s facilities was informed by the College’s 2007 Academic Plan. This was the 
first such facilities plan developed for the College since it located its primary facilities at Truax more 
than 30 years ago.

In 2010, the College faced a unique challenge with historic enrollment increases, inadequate 
facilities and a call for more relevant training for the unemployed. The College had not asked voters 
for increased taxes for new buildings since 1974. On November 2, 2010, the College asked voters 
in its 12-county District for $134 million to start implementing its Facilities Master Plan. Voters 
overwhelming supported the College with almost 60 percent of the vote and agreed to an increase 
in taxes of $33 per year on average for a home valued at $245,000.

Funding from the referendum supported renovations and expansions at the District’s four regional 
campuses, a new Emergency Vehicle Operators Course and supporting facilities, and the creation 
of new facilities at the Truax campus for health education, protective services, culinary, baking, 
physical education, and recreation management, and advanced manufacturing programs as well as 
a new library, student achievement center, and career placement center. 

All work from the 2010 referendum has been completed, and in 2018 a new work team updated the 
2009 Facilities Master Plan with a new 10 Year Facility Master Plan. The updated plan is based on 
the goals of the new Academic and Student Services Plans, identifying how Madison College’s 
facilities can host accessible, high quality learning and technical experiences that meet the needs 
of its ever-evolving students, communities, and area employers. Elements of this updated Facilities 
Master Plan have already begun informing capital resource allocation and planning for FY20 and 
beyond, with future resource allocations dependent upon availability.
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Management Systems and Controls

The District is committed to the development of good management systems and internal controls.  
Significant efforts are made to employ qualified personnel. Similarly, systems are conscientiously 
developed, within which District employees can function effectively. In turn, employees provide 
appropriate levels of supervision and segregation of duties.

Accounting System

In developing and modifying the District’s accounting system, consideration is given to the 
adequacy of internal controls. Internal accounting controls within the District are designed to 
provide reasonable assurance for safeguarding assets against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition; reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements; and accountability for 
assets.  

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the 
benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework.  We believe the District’s internal 
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper 
recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary System

The District budget is prepared annually in accordance with the requirements of the Wisconsin 
Technical College System. These budget requirements include review, public hearing, and 
passage by the District Board prior to July 1 of each year. The level of budgetary control (the level 
at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by fund and 
function.

Budgets are developed based on strategic priorities, objectives, and plans. The budget information 
is summarized by the budget department and analyzed by the administration before being 
submitted to the District Board of Trustees for approval in June. As expenditures occur throughout 
the year, they are recorded against budgeted amounts, and necessary budget adjustments are 
submitted to the Board of Trustees. A two-thirds majority of the Board of Trustees must pass any 
necessary budget adjustments.

Independent Audit

Madison College board policy and state law require an annual audit of the District’s financial 
statements by an independent certified public accountant. The District has complied with this 
requirement, and the auditor’s opinion is included in this report.
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EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Madison Area Technical College 
District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This 
was the twenty-third consecutive year that Madison Area Technical College District had achieved 
this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District must publish an 
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report 
satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We express our appreciation to the dedicated Finance staff for their significant investment of time 
and resources in preparing this report. In addition, we thank Madison College’s Board of Trustees 
for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the District 
responsibly and progressively.

Respectfully submitted,

Jack E. Daniels III, Ph.D. Mark Thomas
President Executive Vice President, Finance &

Administrative Services



December 2, 2020

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

Board of Trustees
Madison Area Technical College District

The management of Madison College is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements in this report. This report has been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles based on our best judgments and giving due consideration to 
materiality.

Madison College has communicated the requirements for accurate records and accounting to 
appropriate employees and has developed a system of internal accounting controls designed to 
provide reasonable assurance for the safeguarding of assets and for the reliability of financial 
records. This system includes selection and training of qualified personnel, organizational 
arrangements to provide for an appropriate division of responsibility, communication of standard
accounting and internal control policies, and regular meetings on accounting matters.

Annually an independent public accounting firm, which we retain to audit our financial 
statements, is responsible for expressing an opinion as to whether our financial statements 
present fairly the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. The audit includes a 
review of our internal control structure and a testing of the accounting procedures and financial 
records.

The Madison College Board of Trustees is composed of concerned and qualified citizens who 
meet regularly with the independent auditors and management. This Board reviews the audit 
scope, discusses financial and reporting subjects, and considers management action on these 
matters. There is full and free access to the Board by the independent auditors.

We believe our policies, internal controls, and review processes provide reasonable assurance 
that our financial information contains the integrity and objectivity necessary for properly 
reporting Madison College’s transactions.

Jack E. Daniels III, Ph.D. Mark Thomas
President Executive Vice President, Finance & 

Administration

Frances Huntley-Cooper Shiva Bidar-Sielaff
Madison College Board Chair Madison College Board Treasurer
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Map of Wisconsin Technical College 
District
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Madison Area Technical College District Board 
FY 2020 - 2021 
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[Employer Member] 
Term Expires 6/30/21 
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Jack E. Daniels III, Ph.D. 
President 
Madison Area Technical College 



M
ad

is
on

 C
ol

le
ge

 O
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l C

ha
rt

R
ev

is
ed

 9
/1

/2
02

0
 J

ac
k 

E.
 D

an
ie

ls
, I

II
Pr

es
id

en
t

Kr
is

tin
 R

ol
lin

g
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

As
st

Pr
es

id
en

t/B
oa

rd

Tu
rin

a 
Ba

kk
en

Pr
ov

os
t  

C
en

te
r f

or
 

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
in

 
Te

ac
hi

ng
 &

 
Le

ar
ni

ngSc
ho

ol
 o

f A
rts

 
& 

Sc
ie

nc
es

To
dd

 S
te

bb
in

s

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
Sc

ie
nc

es
M

ar
sh

a 
Tw

ee
dy

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ac

ad
em

ic
 

In
iti

at
iv

es
Sh

aw
na

 C
ar

te
r 

 

 S
ch

oo
l o

f 
Ap

pl
ie

d 
Sc

ie
nc

e,
 E

ng
r. 

& 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

M
ad

is
on

 C
ol

le
ge

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s

Ta
m

m
y 

Th
ay

er
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ffi
ce

r
Fo

un
da

tio
n

M
ad

is
on

 C
ol

le
ge

 D
is

tri
ct

 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 T

ru
st

ee
s

C
en

te
r f

or
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
Ed

uc
at

io
n

G
eo

ff 
Br

ad
sh

aw

Lu
cí

a 
N

uñ
ez

Vi
ce

-P
re

si
de

nt
Eq

ui
ty

, I
nc

lu
si

on
 &

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t

 S
TE

M
 C

en
te

r
Ke

vi
n 

M
iru

s 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
Ac

ad
em

ic
 

Ad
va

nc
em

en
t

C
hr

is
 V

an
da

ll

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
& 

In
no

va
tio

n
Br

ya
n 

W
oo

dh
ou

se
 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f P
ro

f. 
& 

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

C
en

te
r f

or
 

Ea
rly

 C
ol

le
ge

 
& 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

St
ra

te
gy

En
tre

pr
en

eu
r-

sh
ip

 C
en

te
r

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
H

um
an

 &
 

Pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ke

n 
Zi

m
ny

 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 &
 

In
du

st
ry

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

D
ig

ita
l 

C
re

de
nt

ia
ls

 
In

st
itu

te

Va
le

nt
in

a 
Ah

ed
o

D
ea

n
G

oo
dm

an
 S

ou
th

 
C

am
pu

s 

Ac
ad

em
ic

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
Sy

st
em

s 
& 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
D

en
is

e 
R

ei
m

er

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
N

ur
si

ng
Er

ni
se

 W
at

so
n

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 &

 
Ap

pl
ie

d 
Ar

ts
Er

in
 K

oh
l

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
& 

Ac
ad

em
ic

 
Su

pp
or

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ju

lie
 G

or
es

D
ea

n 
of

 
St

ud
en

ts
G

er
al

do
 V

ila
C

ru
z

St
ud

en
t A

cc
es

s 
& 

Su
cc

es
s

Ke
yi

m
an

i A
lfo

rd
 

Ti
m

 C
as

pe
r

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e
Vi

ce
-P

re
si

de
nt

St
ud

en
t

Af
fa

irs
 &

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

R
el

at
io

ns
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
& 

In
iti

at
iv

es
Em

ily
 S

an
de

rs

St
ra

te
gi

c 
En

ro
llm

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Al
i Z

ar
rin

na
m

M
ar

k 
Th

om
as

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e
Vi

ce
-P

re
si

de
nt

Fi
na

nc
e 

& 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n/

C
O

O Fi
na

nc
e

La
ur

ie
 G

rig
g

 P
ub

lic
 S

af
et

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
Jo

hn
 F

la
nn

er
y 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
Sy

lv
ia

 R
am

ire
z

At
hl

et
ic

s
St

ev
e 

H
au

se
r

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 S
ha

w
n 

Be
llin

g

Fa
c i

lit
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
W

es
 M

ar
qu

ar
dt

R
os

em
ar

y 
Bu

sc
hh

au
s

Vi
ce

-P
re

si
de

nt
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
/

C
H

R
O

 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 &

 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l  
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Kr
is

tin
 P

ol
yw

ac
z 

Em
pl

oy
ee

R
el

at
io

ns
Ka

te
 

Jo
ch

im
se

n 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 

Be
ne

fit
s 

& 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 

W
el

ln
es

s
Ba

rb
ar

a 
M

ey
er

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
s

Je
nn

y 
Be

nt
le

y

Ta
le

nt
 

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
Lo

u 
An

n 
Lu

nd
a 

Ja
m

es
 F

al
co

As
so

ci
at

e
Vi

ce
-P

re
si

de
nt

R
eg

io
na

l C
am

pu
se

s 

Ea
s t

er
n 

R
eg

io
n

Fo
rt 

At
ki

ns
on

 
C

am
pu

s

W
at

er
to

w
n 

C
am

pu
s

N
or

th
er

n 
R

eg
io

n Po
r ta

ge
 

C
am

pu
s

R
ee

ds
bu

rg
 

C
am

pu
s



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

14

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

District Board
Madison Area Technical College
Madison, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Madison Area Technical College, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
Madison Area Technical College as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, Other Postemployment Benefits Plan Information, and the 
Pension Plan Information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Madison Area Technical College’s basic financial statements. The introductory 
section, individual budgetary basis fund financial statements, the schedule to reconcile budget basis 
financial statements to basic financial statements, and the statistical section are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual budgetary basis fund financial statements and the schedule to reconcile budget basis 
financial statements to the basic financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section included in the table of contents have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 2, 2020, on our consideration of the Madison Area Technical College's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Madison Area Technical College’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Madison Area Technical 
College’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
December 2, 2020
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The purpose of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide users of the basic
financial statements with a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of those statements. The
MD&A provides summary level financial information; therefore, it should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Madison Area Technical 
College District’s basic financial statements. The statements are comprised of two components: 
government-wide financial statements and notes to financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements—the government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private
sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and deferred 
outflows, and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the District is improving or declining.  This statement is prepared under the accrual basis 
of accounting whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the service is provided and 
expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of when cash is 
exchanged.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the revenues earned 
and expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as either operating or non-operating. 
As the District receives the majority of its revenues from the taxpayers and other government entities, 
the District will report an operating deficit or loss.  Revenues received from taxpayers (tax levies) and 
from the state (state appropriations) are considered non-operating revenue, and reduce the operating 
deficit or loss.  The utilization of capital assets is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, 
which amortizes the cost of an asset over its expected useful life.

The statement of cash flows presents information related to cash inflows and outflows summarized
by operating, noncapital, capital, and investing activities. This statement is important in evaluating 
the District's ability to meet financial obligations as they mature.

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide financial statements. The notes to
financial statements are located after the government-wide financial statements in this report.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)
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The following summary shows a condensed version of the Statement of Net Position
(Dollars in thousands)

Note:  2018 ending net position will not equal 2019 beginning net position due to the restatement to remove fiduciary funds.

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)

ASSETS 2020 2019 2020-2019 2018 2019-2018
Cash and investments 68,965$  74,267$  (5,303)$ 88,406$    (14,139)$   
Net capital assets 282,788  273,970  8,818       256,549    17,421
Net pension asset 20,780    - 20,780 19,200      (19,200)
Other assets 32,232    44,429    (12,197) 42,765      1,664
Total Assets 404,764  392,667  12,097 406,921    (14,254)     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 44,680    58,936    (14,256) 32,027      26,909      
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs 10,186    3,064 7,122       1,866 1,198        
Refunding loss 3,803 4,165 (362) 4,528 (362)          
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 58,670    66,166    (7,496)      38,420      27,745      

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 44,309    60,736    (16,427) 59,221      1,514        
Net pension liability - 22,927 (22,927) - 22,927
Net OPEB liability 27,942    20,586 7,355       24,053      (3,466)
Other long-term liabilities 158,992  163,801  (4,809)      167,075    (3,274)
Total Liabilities 231,242  268,049  (36,807) 250,349    17,700      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 62,256    31,622    30,634 37,838      (6,216)       
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEBs 4,349 3,511 837          497          3,015        
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 66,604    35,133    31,471 38,335      (3,201)       

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 137,714  127,550  10,164 113,912    13,638      
Restricted for capital acquisitions -         -         -           9,849 (9,849)       
Restricted for debt service 2,418 3,451 (1,033)      3,057 393           
Restricted for net pension asset 20,780    - 20,780 19,200      (19,200)     
Restricted for student organizations 1,290 982        308          - 982
Unrestricted 3,385 23,667    (20,282) 10,639      13,029
Total Net Position 165,587$ 155,650$ 9,937$ 156,657$  (1,007)$     
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Fiscal Year 2020 Compared to 2019

Total assets increased by $12.1 million, or 3.1%.  This was a net result from various changes in most 
categories of assets.

! The net pension asset increased from $0 to $20.8 million since this year the Wisconsin
Retirement System recorded a net pension asset compared to a net pension liability from last
year.  Additional disclosure information can be found in Note 5 on Retirement Plan.

! Cash and investments decreased by $5.3 million or 7.1%.  There has been historical lower
interest rates resulting in lower income as a result.  In addition, due to the pandemic, the
District shut down many auxiliary operations or restricted availability resulting in lower cash
collections and investments.

! Net capital assets increased by $8.8 million or 3.2%. Net capital assets added this fiscal year
were, equipment of $21.1 million, and building and land improvements of $26.4 million.  The
Goodman South Campus was completed and added to the District’s buildings. $7.5 million of
additions were made to construction in progress and $21.0 was capitalized. Depreciation
expense and sale/disposals reduced net capital assets for the year by $25.1 million.

! Other assets decreased by $12.2 million or 27.5%, in large part due to the decrease in student
receivables of $13.9 million. Academic leaders needed more time to complete the modality
of classes due to the pandemic and did not want to assess fees until the district had its
schedules set.  The District did not want to confuse students and change fees after they
registered.  Assessment of tuition and the corresponding receivables were not recorded until
after fiscal 2020 year-end.

Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net benefits by the District that is applicable to 
future reporting periods.

! Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions decreased by $14.3 million or 24.2%.
! Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs increased from by $7.1 million or 232.4%.
! Deferred outflows of resources due to the amortization of the refunding loss decreased by

$362,000 or 8.7%.  This is a straight-line reduction of amortization.

Total liabilities decreased overall by $36.8 million or 13.7% for the fiscal year.
! Current liabilities decreased by $16.4 million or 27.0%. Unearned program and material fees

decreased by $14.9 million due to the delay in assessing tuition and fees due to the pandemic.
Accounts payable decreased by $1.0 million and the current portion of compensated
absences decreased by $281,000.

! The net pension liability decreased by $22.9 million to $0 due to changing from a pension
liability to a net pension asset in fiscal year 2020.

! The net OPEB liability increased by $7.4 million or 35.7%.  Please see Note 6 and 7 for
additional disclosure information regarding OPEBs.  The increase is from the OPEB life
insurance.

! Other long-term liabilities decreased by $4.8 million or 2.9%, mainly due to a decrease in
general obligation debt from scheduled principal payments.

Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net obligations by the District that is applicable to a 
future reporting period.

! Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions increased by $30.6 million or 96.9%.
! Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEBs increased by $837,000 or 23.9%.

Net position increased by $9.9 million or 6.4% for the fiscal year.
! Net investment in capital assets increased by $10.2 million or 8.0%. Many large projects were

completed within the fiscal year.
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! Restricted for debt service decreased by $1.0 million or 29.9%. Premiums received on debt
issues are included in the debt service fund and accrued interest is excluded from the reserve
balance.

! Restricted for net pension asset increased from $0 to $20.8 million due to changing from a
net pension liability to net pension asset for fiscal year 2020.

! Restricted for student organizations increased by $308,000 or 31.4%.  This category was new
due to separating out fiduciary funds and reclassifying certain student activities from a liability
to display its own net position.

! Unrestricted net position decreased by $20.3 million or 85.7% mainly due to increasing the
restricted net position for the net pension asset.

Fiscal Year 2019 Compared to 2018

Total assets decreased by $14.3 million, or 3.5%.  This was a net result from various changes in 
most categories of assets.

! The net pension asset decreased from $19.2 million to $0 since this year the Wisconsin
Retirement System recorded a net pension liability compared to a net pension asset from last
year.  Additional disclosure information can be found in Note 5 on Pensions.

! Cash and investments decreased by $14.1 million or 16.0%.  The campaign for donations for
the new Goodman South campus was in fiscal year 2018.  That resulted in a large decline in
donations for fiscal year 2019 as a comparison.

! Net capital assets increased by $17.4 million or 6.8%. Net capital assets added this fiscal
year were, equipment $24.4 million, and building and land improvements of $9.7 million.
There was also an increase in construction in progress of $13.9 million.   Depreciation
expense and sale/disposals reduced net capital assets for the year by $30.6 million

! Other assets increased by $1.7 million or 3.9%, in large part due to the increase in property
tax receivables of $1.2 million.

Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net benefits by the District that is applicable to 
future reporting periods.

! Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions increased by $26.9 million or 84.0%.
! Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs increased from by $1.2 million or 64.2%.
! Deferred outflows of resources due to the amortization of the refunding loss decreased by

$362,000 or 8.0%.

Total liabilities increased by $17.7 million or 7.1% for the fiscal year.
! Current liabilities increased by $1.5 million or 2.6%. Accounts payables increased by $1.4

million due to the increased expenses at year end for the new Goodman South Campus that
opened up in September 2019.  Unearned program and material fees increased by $788,000.

! The net pension liability increased by $22.9 million from $0 due to changing from a pension
asset for fiscal year 2018.

! The net OPEB liability was decreased by $3.5 million or 14.4%.  Please see Note 6 and 7 for
additional disclosure information regarding OPEBs.

! Other long-term liabilities decreased by $3.3 million or 2.0%, mainly due to a decrease in
compensated absences and general obligation debt.

Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net obligations by the District that is applicable to a 
future reporting period.

! Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased by $6.2 million or 16.4%.
! Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEBs increased by $3.0 million or 607.0%.
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Net position decreased by $1.0 million or 0.6% for the fiscal year.
! Net investment in capital assets increased by $13.6 million or 12.0%. Many large projects

were completed within the fiscal year.
! Restricted for capital acquisitions decreased by $9.8 million to $0.  The District had received

gifts restricted for the construction of a new campus that was fully expensed.
! Restricted for debt service increased by $393,000 or 12.9%. Premiums received on debt

issues are included in the debt service fund and accrued interest is excluded from the reserve
balance.

! Restricted for net pension asset decreased from $19.2 million to $0 due to changing from a
net pension asset to net pension liability for fiscal year 2019.

! Restricted for student organizations increased by $982,000 from $0.  This category was new
due to separating out fiduciary funds and reclassifying certain student activities from a liability
to display its own net position.

! Unrestricted net position increased by $13.0 million or 122.5%.
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The following is a summary of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018 (Dollars in Thousands)

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)

2020 2019 2020-2019 2018 2019-2018
Operating revenues

Student fees 33,426$  33,629$  (203)$ 33,394$  235$     
Federal grants 17,915    19,725    (1,809) 19,516    209       
State grants 4,361 4,591 (231) 4,482 109       
Contract revenues 2,572 2,776 (204) 2,491 285       
Auxiliary revenues 8,354 11,302    (2,948) 8,936 2,366    
Cost reimbursements 50          78          (28) 84 (6)         
Miscellaneous 4,174 1,658 2,516 1,602 57

Total operating revenues 70,852    73,760    (2,909) 70,506    3,255    

Non-operating revenues
Property taxes 79,900    77,765    2,135 74,991    2,774    
State appropriations 73,957    73,147    810      72,586    561       
Federal CARES Act Grants 1,183 - 1,183
Gifts, grants and bequests 5,110 5,784 (674) 15,688 (9,904)   
Investment income earned 1,193 1,999 (806) 1,141 858       

Total non-operating revenues 161,343  158,695  2,648 164,406  (5,711)   

Total revenues 232,195  232,456  (261) 234,912 (2,456)   

Operating expenses
Instruction 110,296  111,461  (1,165) 109,284  2,178    
Instructional resources 11,545    9,050 2,494 8,376 674       
Student services 20,088    17,690    2,398 15,665    2,025    
General institutional 13,728    13,064    664      15,010    (1,946)   
Physical plant 20,152    26,776    (6,624) 21,267    5,509    
Public service 535        473        62        416        58
Auxiliary enterprise services 7,262 11,952    (4,690) 10,557    1,395    
Depreciation 24,844    22,133    2,712 20,735    1,398    
Student aid 9,369 9,654 (285) 9,849 (195)      

Total operating expenses 217,819  222,254  (4,434) 211,159  11,095  

Non-operating expenses
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 284        8,234 (7,951) 27          8,207    
Interest expense 4,155 4,370 (215) 3,732 638       

Total non-operating expenses 4,438 12,604    (8,165) 3,759 8,845    

Total expenses 222,258  234,858  (12,600) 214,918  19,940  

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 9,937 (2,402) 12,339  19,994    (22,396)

Net position - as reported 155,650  158,052  136,663  
Prior period adjustement for Fiduciary Activities 
Per GASB 84 1,395
Net position - end of the year 165,587$ 155,650$ 158,052$
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Comparison of Operating Revenues
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (Dollars in Thousands)

The following is a graphical illustration of operating revenues by source for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020.

Operating Revenues
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Comparison of Operating Expenses
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (Dollars in thousands)

T
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The following is a graphical illustration of operating expenses by function for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020.

Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year 2020 Compared to 2019

Operating revenues are the charges for services offered by the District.  During 2020, the District 
generated $70.9 million of operating revenue, a decrease of $2.9 million or 3.9%.

! Student fees decreased by $203,000 or less than 0.6 %.
! Federal grants decreased by $1.8 million or 9.2%.
! State grants decreased by $231,000 or 5.0%.
! Contract revenue decreased by $204,000 or 7.4%.
! Auxiliary revenues decreased by $2.9 million or 26.1%.  Due to the pandemic, both auxiliary

operations and contract revenues decreased dramatically.  Locations were shut down or had
limited hours to avoid contact and ensure safety as much as possible.

! Miscellaneous revenues increased by $2.5 million or 151.7% due to separating out fiduciary
funds and then reclassifying other student activities under special revenue non -aidable
compared to rolling up as a liability.
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Operating expenses are costs related to offering the programs of the District.  During 2020, total 
operating expenses were $217.8 million, a decrease of $4.4 million or 2.0%. 

! Instructional expenses decreased by $1.2 million or 1.0%.
! Instructional resources increased by $2.5 million or 27.6%.
! Student services expenditures increased by $2.4 million or 13.6%.
! General Institutional expenditures increased by $664,000 or 5.1%.
! There was a large decrease in physical plant expenditures of $6.6 million or 24.7%.  The

District had slowed or delayed expenditures in fiscal year 2020 when the pandemic hit.  As a
result, these expenditures were lower than the prior year.

! Auxiliary enterprise services expenditures decreased by $4.7 million or 39.2%. Many of the
District’s enterprise services had shut down or had greatly reduced hours to keep the faculty,
staff and students as safe as possible.

! Depreciation increased by $2.7 million or 12.3%. This is mainly due to the completion of the
new campus and the additional equipment that was procured to fill the campus.  All have
been in-serviced.

! Student aid decreased by $285,000 or 3.0%.

Non-operating revenue are items not directly related to providing instruction.  During 2020, the District 
generated $161.3 million of non-operating revenue, an increase of $2.6 million or 1.7%.

! Property taxes increased by $2.1 million or 2.7%.
! State appropriations increased slightly by $810,000 or 1.1%.
! Investment income decreased by $806,000 or 40.3%.  Interest rates decreased most of 2020

while our cost of borrowing continues to decline as well.  We predict this will continue moving
forward as the economy continues to struggle during the pandemic.

! The real significant increase is due to receiving the Federal CARES Act Grants to help offset
some of the unplanned expenditures of moving to a distance learning and working
environment.  The District received $1.2 million in fiscal year 2020 and more will be reported
next year.

Non-operating expenses are items not directly related to providing instruction.  During 2020, total 
non-operating expenses for the District were $4.4 million, a decrease of $8.2 million or 64.8%.  

! The losses reported on the disposal of capital assets decreased by $8.0 million compared to
last year.  The increase last year was due to the sale of the downtown campus in which a
number of remodel projects were not fully depreciated.

! Interest expense decreased by $215,000 or 4.9%.  Interest rates are low for the cost of
borrows and we expect will continue to stay low through the pandemic.

Fiscal Year 2019 Compared to 2018

Operating revenues are the charges for services offered by the District.  During 2019, the District 
generated $73.8 million of operating revenue, an increase of $3.3 million or 4.6%.

! Student fees increased by $235,000 or 0.7%.  There was a decline in overall enrollment and
an increase in scholarship allowances that account for the overall decrease, which was offset
by fees collected from student organizations first include in 2019 with the adoption of GASB
statement No. 84.

! Federal grants increased by $209,000 or 1.1%.
! State grants increased by $109,000 or 2.4%.
! Contract revenue increased by $285,000 or 11.4%.  Employers in the District continue to seek

professional development and training for their employees.
! Auxiliary revenues increased by $2.4 million or 26.5% resulting from fees collected from

student organizations first include in 2019 with the adoption of GASB statement No. 84.
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Operating expenses are costs related to offering the programs of the District.  During 2019, total 
operating expenses were $222.3 million, an increase of $11.1 million or 5.3 %. 

! Instructional expenses increased by $2.2 million or 2.0%.  There was a new compensation
plan for part-time faculty implemented in 2019 and an increase in compensation of 3% overall
that would more than offset an expected decrease due to a slight enrollment decrease. The
same holds true for instructional resources with an increase of $674,000 or 8.1%.

! Student services expenditures decreased by $2.0 million or 12.9%, which also aligns with the
trend in enrollments.

! General Institutional expenditures decreased by $1.9 million or 12.9%.
! There was an increase in physical plant expenses of $5.5 million or 25.9%.  The District has

completed the construction of the new Goodman South Campus.  As a result, these
expenditures were higher than normal for both fiscal years 2018 and 2019.

! Auxiliary enterprise services expenditures increased by $1.4 million or 13.2%.
! Depreciation increased by $1.4 million or 6.7%.
! Student aid decreased by $195,000 or 2.0%.

Non-operating revenue are items not directly related to providing instruction.  During 2019, the District 
generated $158.7 million of non-operating revenue, a decrease of $5.7 million or 3.5%.

! Property taxes increased by $2.8 million or 3.7%.
! State appropriations increased slightly by $561,000 or less than 1%.
! Investment income increased by $858,000 or 75.2%.  Interest rates increased most of 2019

while our cost of borrowing remains rather stable.  We predict this will change in the next
year.

! The real significant decrease is due to gifts and donations received for the construction of a
new metro campus located just south of Madison.  The campaign ended in 2018 so there was
a significant decline of $9.9 million or 63.1% compared to last fiscal year.

Non-operating expenses are items not directly related to providing instruction.  During 2019, total 
non-operating expenses for the District were $12.6 million, an increase of $8.8 million or 235.3%.  

! The losses reported on the disposal of capital assets increased by $8.2 million compared to
last year.  Much of this is due to the sale of the downtown campus.  A number of remodel
projects were not fully depreciated resulting in the expected loss.

! Interest expense increased by $638,000 or 17.1%.  This increase is mainly due to the
amortization of the refunding loss from the advanced refunding of notes in 2018.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The District’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, net of accumulated 
depreciation, amounted to $282.8 million and $274.0 million respectively.  This investment in capital 
assets includes land and land improvements, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, 
and moveable equipment.  Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 
3 of the financial statements.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total general obligation debt outstanding of 
$162.9 million.  The balance at the end of June 30, 2019 was $165.7 million.  The District’s bonds 
and notes continue to maintain a Standard & Poor’s AAA rating, and the District continues to meet 
all of its debt service requirements.  All general obligation debt is repaid over the life of the assets 
acquired with debt proceeds. The current debt adequately replaces and expands the equipment and 
facility needs of the District.  Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in 
Note 4 of the financial statements.
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Gifts/Donations

Construction of the Goodman South Campus was completed in August 2019.  Classes began in 
September of 2019.  This was accomplished through generous gifts and donations from various 
organizations, companies and the people of the community.  Most of the expenditures were made 
during fiscal year 2019 with final expenditures made during the early part of fiscal year 2020 for 
completion of the 75,000 square-foot campus.  The South Campus initiative aims to increase access 
of South Madison residents to Madison College, work with community leaders to better assess 
educational and training gaps and offer affordable programs and classes that fill those gaps.  This 
initiative has been met with extremely favorable responses throughout the community.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in 
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Mr. Mark Thomas,
Executive Vice President, Finance & Administrative Services, 1701 Wright Street, Madison, WI  
53704.



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 42,116,352$           44,989,208$           
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,736,987 8,435,764 
Restricted investments 17,111,250             20,842,463             
Accounts receivable 2,159,395 2,660,999 
Property taxes receivable 19,847,516             19,016,784
Federal and state aid receivable 2,145,249 1,839,399
Student fee receivable, less allowance of 
    $4,375,000 for 2020 and $4,570,000 for 2019 5,410,653 19,346,608             
Inventories 2,197,904 1,035,333 
Prepaid items 471,179 530,081 

Total current assets 101,196,485           118,696,639           

Non-current Assets
Net pension asset 20,779,547          - 
Land 7,589,891            7,589,891 
Construction in progress 7,681,114            21,203,810             
Other capital assets 471,064,809        431,072,201           
Less accumulated depreciation (203,547,725)       (185,895,804)         

Total non-current assets 303,567,636           273,970,098           
TOTAL ASSETS 404,764,121           392,666,737           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 44,680,094             58,936,051             
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 10,186,427             3,064,388 
Refunding loss 3,803,147 4,165,352 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 58,669,668             66,165,791             

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 7,992,376 9,016,705 
Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilities 3,390,213 3,304,165 
Accrued interest 1,686,722 1,749,567 
Unearned program and material fees 2,408,964 17,354,660             
Current portion of compensated absences 6,796,749 7,077,437 
Current portion of OPEB - Health Plan 1,019,951 1,069,228 
Current portion of long-term obligations 21,013,617             21,163,831             

Total current liabilities 44,308,592             60,735,593             

Long-term Liabilities
Compensated absences 5,698,315 6,922,541 
General obligation debt 153,265,396           156,846,173           
Capital lease 28,610 32,227 
Net pension liability - 22,926,533 
Net OPEB liability 27,941,565             20,586,247 

Total long-term liabilities 186,933,886           207,313,721           
TOTAL LIABILITIES 231,242,478           268,049,314           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 62,255,735             31,622,228             
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 4,348,659 3,511,171 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 66,604,394             35,133,399             

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 137,713,818           127,549,799           
Restricted for debt service 2,417,605 3,450,698 
Restricted for net pension asset 20,779,547             - 
Restricted for student organizations 1,290,450 982,063 
Unrestricted 3,385,497 23,667,255             

TOTAL NET POSITION 165,586,917$        155,649,815$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Operating revenues

Student program fees, net of scholarship allowances of
$5,207,483 and $5,838,460 for 2020 and 2019, respectively 29,482,201$       29,059,402$       

Student material fees, net of scholarship allowances of   
$194,838 and  $222,739 for 2020 and 2019, respectively 1,071,396           1,131,737 

Other student fees, net of scholarship allowances of    
 $501,855 and $688,466  for 2020 and 2019, respectively 2,872,177 3,438,105 

Federal grants 17,915,177 19,724,619 
State grants 4,360,701 4,591,351 
Business and industry contract revenue 2,429,108 2,630,612 
School district contract revenue 142,904 145,765 
Auxiliary enterprise revenues 8,353,954 11,302,136 
Cost reimbursements 50,044 78,243 
Miscellaneous 4,174,008 1,658,358 

Total operating revenues 70,851,670 73,760,328 

Operating expenses
Instruction 110,296,025 111,461,111 
Instructional resources 11,544,875 9,050,430 
Student services 20,088,031 17,689,933 
General institutional 13,728,207 13,063,949 
Physical plant 20,151,735 26,775,708 
Public service 534,963 473,379 
Auxiliary enterprise services 7,261,915 11,952,319 
Depreciation 24,844,391 22,132,771 
Student aid 9,369,253 9,654,314 

Total operating expenses 217,819,395 222,253,914 

Operating loss (146,967,725)      (148,493,586)      

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Property taxes 79,900,104 77,764,670 
State appropriations 73,957,246 73,147,052
Federal CARES Act Grants 1,182,717 - 
Gifts, grants and bequests 5,110,356 5,784,420
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (283,507)             (8,234,206)          
Investment income earned 1,192,878 1,999,259 
Interest expense (4,154,967)          (4,369,669)          

Total non-operating revenues 156,904,827 146,091,526 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 9,937,102 (2,402,060)          

Net position - beginning of the year as previously reported 155,649,815 156,656,885 

Prior period adjustment - 1,394,990 

Net position - beginning of the year, restated 155,649,815 158,051,875 

Net position - end of the year 165,586,917$     155,649,815$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities

Tuition and fees received 32,917,637$       33,978,995$       
Federal and state grants received 21,970,028 24,293,674 
Business, industry and school district contract 

revenues received 2,572,012 2,776,377 
Payments to employees including related benefits (149,395,274)      (136,793,382)      
Payments to suppliers (45,067,702)        (56,096,430)        
Auxiliary enterprise revenues received 8,353,954 11,302,136 
Other receipts 4,224,052 1,736,601 

Net cash used in operating activities (124,425,293)      (118,802,029)      

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Local property taxes received 79,069,372 76,555,006 
State appropriations received 73,957,246 73,147,052 
Federal CARES act grants received 1,182,717 - 
Gifts, grants and bequests 5,110,356 5,784,420 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 159,319,691 155,486,478 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchases of capital assets (33,869,937)        (46,640,009)        
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 70,030 137,625 
Premium on issuance of capital debt 908,984 1,010,351 
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt 28,000,000 28,000,000 
Principal paid on capital debt (30,763,831)        (29,109,059)        
Interest paid on capital debt (5,735,368)          (5,728,298)          

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (41,390,122)        (52,329,390)        

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income received 1,192,878 1,999,259 
Purchase of investments (11,399,787)        (5,569,885)          
Proceeds on sale of investments 15,131,000 12,978,512 

Net cash provided by investing activities 4,924,091 9,407,886 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,571,633)          (6,237,055)          

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 53,424,972 59,662,027 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 51,853,339$       53,424,972$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities

Operating loss (146,967,725)$    (148,493,586)$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used in operating activities
Depreciation 24,844,391 22,132,771 
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 501,604 36,313 
Federal and state aid receivable (305,850)             (22,296) 
Student fee receivable 13,935,955 (539,339)             
Inventories (1,162,571)          (396,216)             
Prepaid items 58,902 466,958 
Accounts payable (1,170,311)          226,123 
Accrued payroll 86,048 (702,152)             
Unearned program and material fees (14,945,696)        852,777 
Accrued compensated absences (1,504,914)          (783,778)             
Pension benefits (43,706,080)        42,126,487 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 14,255,957 (26,909,475)        
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 30,633,507 (6,215,926)          
Other postemployment benefits 7,306,041 (2,397,037)          
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB (7,122,039)          (1,198,186)          
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 837,488 3,014,533 

Net cash used in operating activities (124,425,293)$    (118,802,029)$    

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the Statement of Net Position

     Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 42,116,352$       44,989,208$       
     Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,736,987 8,435,764 

51,853,339$       53,424,972$       

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities 
Bond issuance costs paid by underwriter 332,026$            261,098$            
Construction in progress reported in accounts payable 5,036,536$         4,890,554$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 502,421$  442,070$  
Accounts receivable 6,125 21,739 

Total current assets 508,546 463,809 
TOTAL ASSETS 508,546 463,809 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 7,868 6,682 
Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilities 26 1,423 

Total current liabilities 7,894 8,105 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,894 8,105 

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 500,652 455,704 

TOTAL NET POSITION 500,652$  455,704$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ADDITIONS

Contributions
   Marketing Consortium 600,847$            574,066$            
   CTSO - Student Organizations 82,416 135,383 
   Wisconsin Technical College System - - 

Total Contributions 683,263 709,449 

Investment Income 12,411 - 
Total Additions 695,674 709,449 

DEDUCTIONS
Wages/Benefits 245,714 260,555 
Marketing 371,326 354,905 
Travel 22,812 59,610 
Other 12,513 52,659 

Total Deductions 652,366 727,729 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 43,308 (18,280) 

Net position - beginning of the year as previously reported 455,704 - 

Prior period adjustment - 470,211 

Net position - beginning of the year 455,704 470,211 

Net position - end of the year 499,012$            455,704$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Madison Area Technical College District (the District) was first chartered as the Madison Industrial
School in 1912. The District was legally organized on July 1, 1967, under the provisions of Chapter
292, Laws of Wisconsin 1965. The geographic area of the District is comprised of part of twelve counties
in south central Wisconsin. There are 225 municipalities and 40 public school districts within the
District’s boundaries. The District contains 4,415 square miles and operates campuses in five cities:  
Fort Atkinson, Madison, Portage, Reedsburg and Watertown. In addition, educational offerings are also
provided throughout the District.

The governing body of the District is the District Board, which consists of nine members. The members
are appointed to staggered three-year terms by twelve county board chairpersons (one from each
county served by the District), who meet once a year to appoint members to the three open seats. The
District Board membership includes two employers, two employees, three additional members, one
school district administrator and one elected official who holds a state or local office. In addition, the 
Board also has a non-voting student representative who is elected by the students. The District Board
powers are established under the provisions of Chapter 38 of the Wisconsin Statutes and include:

! Authority to borrow money and levy taxes;

! Budgetary authority; and

! Authority over other fiscal and general management of the District which includes, but is not
limited to, the authority to execute contracts, to exercise control over facilities and properties, to
determine the outcome or disposition of matters affecting the recipients of the services being
provided, and to approve the hiring or retention of key management personnel who implement
Board policy and directives.

The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (US GAAP) as applicable to public colleges and universities as well as those
prescribed by the Wisconsin Technical College System (WTCS). The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant
policies.

Reporting Entity

In May 2002, GASB issued Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units. In November 2010 GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: 
Omnibus an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. In January 2016, GASB issued 
Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – an Amendment of GASB No. 
14, to provide additional guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the District is 
not financially accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the District. Generally, it requires reporting, as a component unit, an 
organization that raises and holds economic resources for the direct benefit of a governmental unit. 

Madison Area Technical College Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) is a not-for-profit corporation whose 
purpose is to solicit, hold, manage, invest, and expend endowment funds and other gifts, grants, and 
bequests exclusively for the maintenance and benefit of the District and its students. The foundation is 
managed by an independent board of directors, and is not fiscally accountable to the District.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The financial resources of the Foundation are insignificant to the district as a whole and accordingly, 
financial information related to the Foundation is not included in these financial statements.

Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

For financial reporting purposes, the District is considered a special-purpose government engaged only
in business-type activities. Accordingly, the financial statements of the District have been prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation
has been incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the years for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. All significant intra-district
transactions have been eliminated.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as described previously in this note.

Use of Estimates

In preparing basic financial statements in conformity with US GAAP, the District is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources the disclosure of contingent assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes demand deposits held at banks and small amounts maintained for change funds. Cash
equivalents are defined as short-term highly liquid investments readily converted to cash with original
maturities of three months or less when acquired.

Investments

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, provides guidance for determining 
a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes and for applying fair value to certain 
investments and disclosures related to fair value measurements. Investments, other than the Wisconsin 
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and Certificates of Deposits, are stated at fair value, which 
is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing 
parties. Adjustments to fair value are recorded in the operating statement in investment income.

The Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative (WISC) was created in 1988 and is a comprehensive
cash management program exclusively for Wisconsin school districts, technical college districts,
municipalities, and other public entities. An investment in the fund represents an undivided beneficial
ownership interest in the assets of WISC and the securities and instruments in which the assets of
WISC are invested. WISC was established pursuant to an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement
under the Wisconsin intergovernmental cooperation statute, Wisconsin Statutes, Section 66.0301. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

WISC is governed by a commission (the “Commission”) in accordance with the terms of the
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement. The Commission has full power, control and authority
(including delegative authority) over the affairs, investments and assets of the fund. WISC currently
consists of the Cash Management Series, the Investment Series and the Limited Duration Series (LTD). 

Each of these series is invested in a separate portfolio of permitted investments. Annually audited
financial statements of WISC are provided to all participants.

The WISC Multi-class Series currently meet all of the necessary criteria to elect to measure all of the 
investments in the Series at amortized cost. WISC Limited Term Duration (LTD) series measures its 
investments at fair value. The WISC investment pools are exempt from the GASB 72 fair value 
hierarchy disclosures. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of the District’s share of WISC’s assets
was substantially equal to the amount reported in these statements.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF),
and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter
25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the
right to withdraw their funds in total on one day’s notice. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of
the District’s share of the LGIP’s assets was substantially equal to the amount as reported in these
statements.

Prepaids

Prepaid expenses and other assets represent payments made by the District for which benefits extend 
beyond the fiscal year end.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies that are to be used are reported at cost. Inventories held for resale, which include 
books, are reported at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined primarily by the first-
in, first-out method.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation. Donated capital assets, 
donated works of art and similar items are valued at their estimated acquisition value. The cost of
maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Equipment assets having a cost of
$5,000 or more per unit and building or remodeling projects of $15,000 or more are capitalized. 
Depreciation on buildings and equipment is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the
depreciable assets to operations on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset,
which range from three to ten years for equipment and fifteen to fifty years for buildings and remodeling.

GASB Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period, was adopted by the District in fiscal year 2019. Interest costs incurred before the end of a 
construction period is recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred and such 
interest cost will not be capitalized as part of the historical cost of a capital asset. 



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

38

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes and Taxes Receivable

The District Board, under Section 38.16 of the Wisconsin Statutes, on an annual basis levies a tax for 
operating purposes. Prior to fiscal year 2013-14, the District was permitted to levy property taxes up to 
a statutorily allowed operational mill rate of 1.5 mills; the District consistently remained below the limit. 
Beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, with 2013 Wisconsin Act 20, the mill rate limit was changed to cap 
the operational levy at 2013 levels. Increases in the operating levy are only possible with increases in 
the District’s net new construction. Beginning in fiscal year 2014-15, under 2013 Wisconsin Act 145, 
this operational levy limit was eliminated and an estimated 0.89 mills were removed from property taxes 
and transferred to state funding. 

The mill rate limitation is not applicable to taxes levied for the purposes of paying principal and interest 
on general obligation debt issued by the District that is used for capital improvements and equipment 
acquisitions.

The District communicates its property tax levy to city, village and town treasurers or clerks in October
of the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The following dates are pertinent to the District’s tax
calendar:

Levy date October 31, or within 10 days of
receipt of equalized valuation,
whichever is later

Payments:
Taxes paid on or before December 31 Due to District by January 15
Taxes paid between January 1 and January 31 Due to District by February 20
Second installment due by July 31 Remaining balance due to District

by August 20

The District recognizes its total levy as revenue in the fiscal year for which taxes are levied.
The 2020 and 2019 tax levies were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Mill rate for operations 0.49806 0.50348
Operational levy 45,038,364$            42,740,697$            

Mill rate for debt service 0.38522 0.40612
Debt Service levy 34,834,515$            34,475,752$            

Total mill rate 0.88328 0.90960
Total tax levy 79,872,879$            77,216,449$            
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation, Sick Leave and Other Employee Benefit Amounts

Vacation
Accumulated vacation is recorded as accrued compensated absences in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position.

Pensions
The District has a retirement plan covering substantially all of its employees, which is funded through 
contributions to the Wisconsin Retirement System (“WRS”). GASB Statement No. 68 – Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions provides guidance for how governments measure and report long-
term obligations and annual costs associated with the pension benefits they provide.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of WRS and additions to/deductions from WRS’ fiduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds 
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value.

Sick Leave
The District’s employee fringe benefit program includes provisions that allow, at defined retirement, the 
dollar conversion of accumulated sick leave to a lump-sum distribution paid into the Special Pay 
Deferral Plan, the Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA), or a combination of the two. This 
payment is dependent on the health insurance choice at the time of retirement.

Employees over 55 with at least 5 years full time service, shall be paid (as explained below) for 
accumulated vested sick days for a maximum of 112.5 days. The non-vested compensated absences 
have been recorded based on the District’s prior experience with employees remaining and receiving 
payment and the maximums allowed. The recorded sick leave is the amount reasonably expected to 
be paid out.

Effective July 1, 2015, new full time employees are not eligible for the sick leave payout upon retirement. 
New employees can accumulate up to 150 sick days, but the days are considered “non-vested” sick 
days. Current full time employees employed by the District as of June 30, 2015, are still eligible for the 
sick leave payout upon retirement as described. However, the employee’s sick leave balance as of 
June 30, 2015, (“vested” sick days) will not increase. In addition, the employee’s pay rate as of June 
30, 2015, will be used to calculate the sick leave payout upon retirement.

Special Pay Deferral Plan
In December 2002, the District established the Special Pay Deferral Plan (the “Plan”), a tax qualified 
governmental retirement plan under sections 401(a) and 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(the “Code”), as amended, to which it contributes all or a portion of an employee’s accumulated sick 
leave payout upon retirement. The Plan also includes a tax-sheltered custodial account plan under 
section 403(b) of the Code, to which it contributes the excess, if any, of the employee’s accumulated
vested sick leave over the maximum amount that could be contributed to the tax qualified governmental 
retirement plan described in the preceding sentence. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Health Reimbursement Arrangement
In July 2003, the District established the Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA), a tax qualified 
governmental retirement plan under sections 401(a) and 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(the “Code”), as amended, to which it contributes all or a portion of an employee’s accumulated vested 
sick leave payout upon retirement. The HRA enables participants and their dependents to be 
reimbursed tax-free for eligible medical and dental expenses and health insurance premiums. 
Payments to the HRA are combined with payments to the Special Pay Deferral Plan.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Retiree Health Insurance
The District also provides post-retirement health care benefits to full time teachers,
paraprofessional/school related personnel (“PSRP”) and administrators. 

Teachers, PSRP employees and administrators who had been employed by the District for 20 or more 
years and who had attained the age of 57 at the time of retirement, or had been employed by the District 
for 15 or more years and who had attained the age of 60 at the time of retirement, received a single 
health insurance plan premium (Arise, GHC or WPS) to be paid for until the retiree reaches age 65 or 
qualifies for Medicare, whichever is earlier. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Retiree Life Insurance
The fiduciary net position of the Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund (LRLIF) has been determined using 
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This includes 
for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to other post-employment benefits, OPEB expense, and information about the 
fiduciary net position of the LRLIF and additions to/deductions from LRLIFs fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LRLIF. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Tuition and Fees

Tuition and fees are recorded as revenue in the period in which the related activity or instruction takes 
place. Revenues for the summer semester are prorated on the basis of calendar days occurring before 
and after June 30. The District’s student fee receivable is stated at amounts due from students, net of 
an allowance for doubtful accounts. Amounts outstanding longer than the agreed upon payment terms 
are considered past due. The District determines its allowance for doubtful accounts by considering a 
number of factors including length of time amounts are past due, and the District’s previous loss history. 
The District writes off receivables when they become uncollectible, and payments subsequently 
collected on such receivables are credited to the allowance for doubtful accounts.

State and Federal Revenues

The District receives funding from various federal and state contracts and grants. These revenues are
earned as expenditures are incurred. Such expenditures may be incurred during the grantor’s fiscal
period, which may be different than that of the District’s fiscal period and are subject to the Title II US 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and state single audit guidelines.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Federal Financial Assistance Programs

The District participates in federally funded Pell Grants, SEOG Grants, Federal Work-Study, and
Federal Direct Student Loans programs. Federal programs are audited in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance and the Compliance Supplement.

Scholarship Allowances and Student Aid

Financial aid to students is reported in the financial statements under the alternative method, as
prescribed by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). Certain
aid (Foundation scholarships or funds provided to students by third parties) is accounted for as third
party payments (credited to the student’s account as if the student made the payment). All other aid is
reflected in the financial statements as operating revenue when received and operating expense when 
disbursed or scholarship allowances, which reduce revenues. Scholarship allowances represent the
portion of aid provided to the student in the form of reduced tuition. 

Classification of Revenue and Expense

The District has classified its revenues and expenses as either operating or non-operating according
to the following criteria:

Operating revenues/expenses: Operating revenues and expenses include activities that have the
characteristics of exchange transactions to provide goods or services related to the District’s principal
ongoing operations. Operating revenues include 1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship
allowances, 2) sales and services provided by auxiliary enterprises, and 3) most federal, state and local
grants and contracts that are essentially the same as contracts for services that finance programs of
the District. Operating expenses include the cost of providing educational services, student aid,
administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.

Non-operating revenues/expenses: Non-operating revenues and expenses include activities that have
the characteristics of non-exchange transactions. Non-operating revenues are classified as defined by
GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. 
These revenues include gifts and contributions and other revenue sources such as state appropriations,
the local property tax levy, investment income, and any grants and contracts not classified as operating
revenue or restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for capital programs. Non-operating
expenses include interest on long-term obligations and losses on the disposal of capital assets.

Net Position

Net position is classified according to restrictions on availability of assets for satisfaction of District 
obligations. 

Net investment in capital assets:  This represents the net value of capital assets (land, buildings and 
equipment) less the debt incurred to acquire or construct the assets (excluding unamortized debt 
premiums) plus the borrowed resources not yet expended, but restricted for capital purchases. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Premiums on debt are excluded from this calculation because they have been reserved for debt 
service and are therefore not capital related debt.

Restricted net position:  Restricted net position includes resources in which the District is legally or 
contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.

Restricted net position for debt service: This represents resources that can only be used to repay 
debt service costs (principal and interest) as they are levied for that specific purpose. 

Restricted net position for capital acquisitions: This represents resources that can only be used to 
acquire capital assets related to the construction of a new campus as they are donor-restricted gifts.

Restricted net position for net pension asset: This represents resources that can only be used for 
future pension related obligations.

Restricted net position for student organizations: This represents resources that haven been 
collected from students and can only be used to support the organizations/activities collected for.

Unrestricted net position:  Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from student tuition 
and fees, state appropriations, and sales and services provided by educational departments and 
auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general 
operations of the District and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet current 
expenses for any purpose.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, it is the 
District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

GASB Implementations

The District feels it is important to note that it has adopted the following statements for fiscal year 2020:

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The statement addresses accounting 
and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). The District does not have any 
ARO to report for fiscal year 2020.

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The standard establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary 
activities of all state and local governments to determine whether an activity should be reported in a 
fiduciary fund in the financial statements. The Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary 
activities of the state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a 
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a 
fiduciary relationship exists. The District has identified three fiduciary activities and has presented its 
own statement of fiduciary net position and statement of changes in fiduciary net position for these 
activities.
.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosure Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements. The objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to 
government financial statements related to debt including direct borrowing and direct placements. It 
also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. 
The District implemented this standard effective July 1, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 89, Account for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period. 
All interest incurred before the end of a construction period was recognized as an expense in the period 
in which the cost incurred. The District implemented this standard effective July 1, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests-An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 
No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of 
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the 
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity 
interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported 
as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. 
This statement is not applicable for the District. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an 
investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose 
government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including 
permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure 
the majority equity interest at fair value. For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally 
separate organization, a government should report the legally separate organization as a component 
unit, and the government or fund that holds the equity interest should report an asset related to the 
majority equity interest using the equity method. This Statement establishes that ownership of a 
majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results in the government being financially 
accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the government should report that 
organization as a component unit. This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a 
government has a 100 percent equity interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 
100 percent equity interest in the component unit. Transactions presented in cash flows statements of 
the component unit in that circumstance should include only transactions that occurred subsequent to 
the acquisition. The District has evaluated this statement and has determined it has no impact on the 
financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Date of Certain Authoritative Guidance. This
standard delayed the effective date of selected GASB Statements and other authoritative guidance. 
The District has implement this standard for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Pending Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information 
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by 
governments. This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an 
underlying asset. The District will implement this standard in fiscal year 2021.



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

44

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

GASB Statement No 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. This objective of this Statement is to provide a 
single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issues and increase consistency in accounting 
and financial reporting of conduit debt obligations. The District will implement this standard in the fiscal 
year 2022.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020: The objective of this Statement is to enhance the 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and improve consistency of authoritative literature. 
Several topics are addressed by this standard including specific aspects of leases, intra-entity transfers, 
certain OPEB reporting aspects, terminology used to refer to derivatives instruments, certain aspects 
of reporting public entity risk pools and measurement of AROs. The District will implement this standard 
in the fiscal year 2021.

GASB Statement No 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates: The objective of this standard is to 
address the accounting and financial reporting implication resulting from the replacement of an 
interbank offer rate. The District will implement this standard in the fiscal year 2021.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements: The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting as related to public-
private and public-public partnership arrangements. The District will implement this standard in the 
fiscal year 2023.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscriptions-Based Information Technology Arrangements: The purpose of 
this statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements (SBITA), include defining SBITA, establishing a SBITA right of 
use asset recording model and measurement framework, and establish required note disclosures. The 
District will implement this standard in the fiscal year 2023.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and Financial Reporting For 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans: an amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 14 and No. 84 and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32: The objective of this standard is to 
address the accounting and financial reporting requirements for Section 457 Deferred Compensation 
plans. The District will implement this standard in the fiscal year 2022.

Reclassifications

The basic financial statements include comparative data for the prior year in order to provide an 
understanding of the changes in financial position and operations. Certain amounts presented in the 
prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s presentation.
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NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The District’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with financial 
institutions and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. Investments include debt securities and certificates of deposit with original maturities 
greater than three months from the date of acquisition.

The District’s cash, cash equivalents and investments consist of the following amounts at June 30:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are presented in the financial statements as follows:

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits. Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of a financial institution 
failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to the District. The District does not have a policy 
regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District had cash bank 
balances of $18.4 and $17.4 million, respectively, which were covered by depository insurance or 
secured through third party collateral agreements. As a result, the District did not hold any deposits that 
were exposed to custodial credit risk.

2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents

Petty cash funds 18,641$ 18,127$             
Cash in bank 18,403,225 17,380,610        
Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 383,670 740,780             
Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative - 

Cash Management Series 33,550,224 35,727,525        
Cash and cash equivalents sub-total 52,355,760 53,867,042        

Investments
Limited Term Duration Investment 15,132,503           15,711,463        
Certificates of Deposit 1,978,747 5,131,000          

Investment sub-total 17,111,250 20,842,463        

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 69,467,010$         74,709,505$      

2020 2019
Current assets

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 42,116,352$          44,989,208$       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,736,987 8,435,764           
Restricted investments 17,111,250            20,842,463         
Fiduciary Funds 502,421 442,070

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 69,467,010$          74,709,505$       
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NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Cash Equivalents and Investments

The District is authorized by Wisconsin Statute 66.0603 to invest in the following instruments:
* Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies.
* Obligations of any Wisconsin county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village,

town or school district.
* Time deposits in any bank, trust company or savings and loan association that is authorized to

transact business in Wisconsin, if the time deposits mature in not more than three years.
* The state’s local government pooled investment fund or Wisconsin Investment Series

Cooperative.
* Any security maturing in seven years or less with either the highest or second rating category

of a nationally recognized rating agency.
* Repurchase agreements with public depositories, if the agreement is secured by federal bonds

or securities.
* Securities of open-end management investment companies or investment trusts, if the portfolio

is limited to obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies.
* Bonds issued by a local exposition district, local professional baseball park district, or the

University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority.

Further, the District seeks to invest in Wisconsin banks and other local investments to further support 
the local economy.

The District has adopted an investment policy that requires the investment portfolio to be diversified as 
to instruments and dealers, subject to the following maximums by instrument:

Repurchase agreements 25%
Municipal Securities 40%
Time Deposits 100%
Money Market Mutual Funds – Rated 100%
U.S. Treasury bills or notes 100%
Other U.S. government agencies 75%
Commercial Paper 25%
Bankers’ acceptances 25%
Open-end investment companies 100%
Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool 100%
Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative: 

Investment Series 75%
Limited Term Duration 75%

      Cash Management Series 50%

Individual issues may not exceed 5% of the market value of the portfolio at the time of purchase with 
the exception of U.S. Government issues fully guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the U.S. 
Government or agencies thereof, shares of open-end investment companies (mutual funds), the 
Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool and the Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative.
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NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk – Cash Equivalents and Investments. Is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District does not have a policy regarding 
custodial credit risk for cash equivalents. Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative instruments are 
held by the District’s agent in the District’s name. It is the District’s policy to secure all investment 
securities through third party custody and safekeeping procedures. CD’s are covered by depository 
insurance up to $250,000 per issuing bank. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District had no custodial 
credit risk on its investments.

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, the District’s investment policy limits the maturity of any security to no more than five years from 
the date of purchase or in accordance with state and local statutes and ordinances. In addition, the 
policy indicates that the investment portfolio should be structured so that securities mature to meet 
cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open 
market prior to maturity. The policy sets a maximum duration range of two years with a target duration 
of one year.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation. The District’s investment policy explicitly states that it will minimize credit risk by limiting 
investments to the safest type of securities and diversifying the investment portfolio - consistent with 
those investments allowed by state statutes, and according to the maximum percentages as previously 
disclosed within this footnote. In addition, individual securities may not exceed 5% of the market value 
of the portfolio at the time of purchase with the exception of U.S. Government issues fully guaranteed 
as to both principal and interest by the U.S. Government or agencies thereof, shares of open-end 
investment companies, the Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool, or the Wisconsin 
Investment Series Cooperative. The Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative Cash Management and 
Investment Series are rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s for principal stability. The Wisconsin Local 
Government Investment Pool is not rated.

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. The District does not have any investments to report separately under GASB 
Statement No. 72 as the investments are excluded under this measurement. 
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NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Cash and investments are classified on the Statement of Net Position as follows at June 30:

The portion of cash, cash equivalents and investments restricted is for compliance with legal 
requirements and cannot be used for general purposes of the District.

2020 2019
Restricted for:

Debt service 4,104,327$           5,200,265$        
Capital projects 22,743,910 24,077,962        

Total restricted 26,848,237 29,278,227        

Unrestricted 42,116,352 44,989,208        

Fiduciary funds 502,421 442,070             

Total cash and cash equivalents and investments 69,467,010$         74,709,505$      
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NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity was as follows for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land 7,589,891$    7,589,891$    
Construction in progress 21,203,810    7,494,999      21,017,695    7,681,114      

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 28,793,701    7,494,999      21,017,695    15,271,005    

Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements 12,080,087    1,643,789      71,620           13,652,256    
Building and improvements 283,804,655  24,820,101    1,745,124      306,879,632  
Equipment 135,187,459  21,074,724    5,729,262      150,532,921  

Total capital assets, being depreciated 431,072,201  47,538,614    7,546,006      471,064,809  

Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements 5,125,399      399,307         71,620           5,453,086      
Building and improvements 88,096,826    7,755,422      1,410,895      94,441,353    
Equipment 92,673,579    16,689,662    5,709,955      103,653,286  

Total accumulated depreciation 185,895,804  24,844,391    7,192,470      203,547,725  

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 245,176,397  22,694,223    353,536         267,517,084  

Net capital assets 273,970,098  30,189,222$  21,371,231$  282,788,089  

Less general obligation debt (165,650,000) (162,890,000)
Less capital lease (36,058)         (32,227)          
Plus unexpended debt proceeds included

in general obligation debt 19,265,759    17,847,956    

Total invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 127,549,799$ 137,713,818$

2020
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NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Capital asset activity was as follows for the year ended June 30, 2019:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land 7,589,891$    7,589,891$    
Construction in progress 7,334,078      18,876,017    5,006,285      21,203,810    

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 14,923,969    18,876,017    5,006,285      28,793,701    

Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements 11,341,142    1,270,016      531,071         12,080,087    
Building and improvements 292,437,889  8,402,387      17,035,621    283,804,655  
Equipment 125,069,530  24,383,187    14,265,258    135,187,459  

Total capital assets, being depreciated 428,848,561  34,055,590    31,831,950    431,072,201  

Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements 5,280,773      332,619         487,993         5,125,399      
Building and improvements 89,741,202    7,429,702      9,074,078      88,096,826    
Equipment 92,201,177    14,370,450    13,898,048    92,673,579    

Total accumulated depreciation 187,223,152  22,132,771    23,460,119    185,895,804  

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 241,625,409  11,922,819    8,371,831      245,176,397  

Net capital assets 256,549,378  30,798,836$  13,378,116$  273,970,098  

Less general obligation debt (166,755,000) (165,650,000)
Less capital lease (40,117)         (36,058)          
Plus unexpended debt proceeds included

in general obligation debt 24,157,513    19,265,759    

Total invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 113,911,774$ 127,549,799$

2019
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities of the District consist of net other postemployment benefits liability, general 
obligation notes and bonds payable, capital lease, net pension liability and compensated absences.

The changes in long-term liabilities are as follows:

The District pledges full faith, credit and resources of the District to pay all outstanding general 
obligation notes. The District levies taxes annually to pay the amount of principal and interest due for 
the debt.

Due Within
June 30, 2019 Additions Payments June 30, 2020 One Year

Notes and bonds payable 165,650,000$ 28,000,000$  30,760,000$ 162,890,000$ 21,010,000$
Capital lease              36,058 -               3,831               32,227             3,617 
Compensated absences       13,999,978        5,572,523        7,077,437        12,495,064      6,796,749 
Other postemployment

benefits       21,655,475        7,306,041 - 28,961,516 1,019,951    
Net pension liability       22,926,533 - 22,926,533 - -
Premium on notes and

bonds payable       12,356,173           908,984 1,879,761        11,385,396 -

 $ 236,624,217  $  41,787,548  $  62,647,562  $  215,764,203  $28,830,317 

Due Within
June 30, 2018 Additions Payments June 30, 2019 One Year

Notes and bonds payable 166,755,000$ 28,000,000$  29,105,000$ 165,650,000$ 21,160,000$
Capital lease              40,117 -               4,059               36,058             3,831 
Compensated absences       14,783,756        5,891,804        6,675,582        13,999,978      7,077,437 
Other postemployment

benefits       24,052,512 - 2,397,037        21,655,475 1,069,228    
Net pension liability - 22,926,533 - 22,926,533 -
Premium on notes and

bonds payable       13,081,161 1,010,351        1,735,339 12,356,173 -

 $ 218,712,546  $  57,828,688  $  39,917,017  $  236,624,217  $29,310,496 
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

The debt obligations of the District at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Buyer 2020 2019
Series 2010-11A Bond
$12,100,000 general obligation school improvements bonds
issued March 2, 2011 with interest at 2.50 to 3.50% payable
semiannually in March and September; payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on
March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to acquire and improve sites;
constructing new buildings and facilities; adding to, upgrading,
remodeling, and improving existing buildings, and acquiring
furnishings, fixtures and equipment.

M&I Marshall 
and Ilsley and 
Stern, Agee & 
Leach

1,435,000$     2,820,000$     

Series 2010-11B Bond
$41,500,000 general obligation school improvements bonds
issued May 2, 2011 with interest at 2.00 to 5.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year. Proceeds used to
acquire and improve sites; constructing new buildings and
facilities; adding to, upgrading, remodeling, and improving
existing buildings, and acquiring furnishings, fixtures and
equipment. Portion of this bond was refinanced with Series
2017 Bonds on December 21, 2017. Remaining debt on this
bond matures March 1, 2021.

Piper Jaffray 1,820,000       3,570,000       

Series 2011-12A Bond
$57,100,000 general obligation school improvements bonds
issued July 1, 2011 with interest at 3.00 to 4.50% payable
semiannually in March in September; payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year. Proceeds used to
acquire and improve sites; constructing new buildings and
facilities; adding to, upgrading, remodeling, and improving
existing buildings, and acquiring furnishings, fixtures and
equipment. Portion of this bond was refinanced with Series
2017 Bonds on December 21, 2017. Remaining debt on this
bond matures on March 1, 2021.  

Citi 2,195,000       5,105,000       

Series 2011-12A Note
$7,050,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
August 24, 2011 with interest at 2.00 to 2.50% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2020. Proceeds used to acquire
moveable equipment.

Bosc, Inc. - 340,000

Series 2011-12B Note
$7,050,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
February 1, 2012 with interest at 2.00% payable semiannually
in March and September; principal payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on
March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to acquire and improve sites;
adding to, upgrading, remodeling, and improving existing
buildings, and acquiring furnishings, fixtures and equipment.

Piper Jaffray 500,000          1,000,000       
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Series 2012-13A Note Buyer 2020 2019
$10,500,000 general obligation promissory note payable
issued August 29, 2012 with interest at 1.50 to 2.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to improve sites
and acquire moveable equipment.

Hutchinson, 
Shockey, Erley, 
& Co.

500,000$        750,000$        

Series 2012-13B Note
$10,500,000 general obligation promissory note payable
issued February 1, 2013 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable 
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2022. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvements and acquire moveable
equipment.

Janney Capital 
Markets 1,000,000       1,500,000       

Series 2012-13A Bond
$13,000,000 general obligation school improvement bonds
issued June 27, 2013 with interest at 2.00 to 4.25% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2033. Proceeds used to acquire and
improve sites; constructing new buildings and facilities; adding 
to, upgrading, remodeling, and improving existing buildings,
and acquiring furnishings, fixtures and equipment.

Piper Jaffray 10,970,000     11,255,000     

Series 2013-14A Note
$9,215,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
September 4, 2013 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2023. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

BMO Capital 
Markets 930,000          1,220,000       

Series 2013-14B Note
$9,285,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
January 29, 2014 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2023. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Piper Jaffray 1,140,000       1,500,000       

Series 2013-14C Note
$2,500,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
June 30, 2014 with interest at 1.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2024. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment and site improvements.

Hutchinson, 
Shockey, Erley, 
& Co.

1,050,000       1,295,000       
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Series 2014-15A Note Buyer 2020 2019
$8,000,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
August 26, 2014 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2024. Proceeds used to acquire
moveable equipment.

Janney 
Montgomery 
Scott LLC

2,765,000$     3,405,000$     

Series 2014-15B Note
$8,500,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
January 29, 2015 with interest at 1.50 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2024. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Janney 
Montgomery 
Scott LLC

4,605,000       5,690,000       

Series 2014-15A Bond
$10,070,000 general obligation school improvement bonds
issued June 30, 2015 with interest at 3.00 to 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2033. Proceeds used to acquire and
improve sites; constructing new buildings and facilities; adding 
to, upgrading, remodeling, and improving existing buildings,
and acquiring furnishings, fixtures and equipment.

Piper Jaffray 8,130,000       8,625,000       

Series 2015-16B Note
$4,150,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
October 28, 2015 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2020. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Fidelity Capital 
Markets - 1,055,000

Series 2015-16C Note
$4,150,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
January 26, 2016 with interest at 2.00 to 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2020. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

FTN Financial 
Capital Markets - 1,590,000

Series 2015-16D Note
$4,150,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
February 25, 2016 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Fidelity Capital 
Markets 1,410,000       2,795,000       
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

$4,100,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
April 27, 2016 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2024. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Fidelity Capital 
Markets 4,100,000$       4,100,000$       

Series 2015-16F Note
$4,100,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
June 22, 2016 with interest at 2.00 to 2.50% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2025. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Piper Jaffray 4,100,000         4,100,000         

Series 2016-17C Note
$4,235,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
November 22, 2016 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2022. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Fidelity Capital 
Markets 2,160,000         3,210,000         

Series 2016-17D Note
$4,235,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
February 21, 2017 with interest at 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2022. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Piper Jaffray 2,170,000         3,215,000         

Series 2016-17E Note
$4,235,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
April 25, 2017 with interest at 2.00 to 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2026. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Hutchinson, 
Shockey, Erley, 
& Co.

4,235,000         4,235,000         

Series 2016-17F Note
$4,225,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
June 27, 2017 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2026. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

FTN Financial 
Capital Markets 4,225,000         4,225,000         
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Series 2017-18A Note Buyer 2020 2019
$8,290,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
August 24, 2017 with interest at 4.00 to 5.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2020. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment and site improvements.

Robert W. Baird 
& Co. -$ 1,000,000$      

Series 2017-18B Note
$8,450,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
November 21, 2017 with interest at 2.00 to 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2024. Proceeds used to acquire
moveable equipment and site improvements.

Robert W. Baird 
& Co. 6,850,000       7,850,000        

Series 2017 Bonds
$53,120,000 general obligation refunding bonds payable
issued December 21, 2017 with interest at 2.75 to 5.00%
payable semiannually in March and September; principal
payments are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each
year until maturity on March 1, 2031.  Proceeds used to refund 
portion of previously issued Series 2010-11B Bonds and
Series 2011-12A Bonds.

Bank of America 
Merrill Lynch 52,140,000     52,140,000      

Series 2017-18C Note
$8,260,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
May 23, 2018 with interest at 3.00 to 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2027. Proceeds used to acquire
moveable equipment and acquisition of site and construction
of new building. 

Robert W. Baird 
& Co. 8,260,000       8,260,000        

Series 2018-19A Note
$5,600,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
July 26, 2018 with interest at 4.00% payable semiannually in
March and September; principal payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on
March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to remodel buildings and
improvement projects and acquire moveable equipment and
site improvements.

BOK Financial 
Securities, Inc. 500,000          1,500,000        

Series 2018-19B Note
$5,600,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
September 26, 2018 with interest at 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Hutchinson, 
Shockey, Erley, 
& Co.

500,000          1,500,000        
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Series 2018-19C Note Buyer 2020 2019
$5,600,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
November 27, 2018 with interest at 3.00 to 5.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2024. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

J.P. Morgan 
Securities LLC 5,600,000$     5,600,000$     

Series 2018-19D Note
$5,600,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
March 27, 2019 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2026. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

UBS Financial 
Services Inc. 5,600,000       5,600,000       

Series 2018-19E Note
$5,600,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
May 22, 2019 with interest at 2.00 to 3.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2028. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Robert W. Baird 
& Co. 5,600,000       5,600,000       

Series 2019-20A Note
$5,300,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
August 28, 2019 with interest at 5.00% payable semiannually
in March and September; principal payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on
March 1, 2021. Proceeds used to remodel buildings and
improvement projects, building addition and acquire moveable
equipment.

BOK Financial 
Securities, Inc. 1,000,000       -

Series 2019-20B Note
$5,300,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
September 25, 2019 with interest at 4.00% to 5.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2022. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Robert W. Baird 
& Co. 2,000,000       -

Series 2019-20C Note
$4,125,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
November 25, 2019 with interest at 2.00 to 4.00% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2023. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Hutchinson, 
Shockey, Erley, 
& Co.

2,125,000       -



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

58

NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Series 2019-20D Note Buyer 2020 2019
$4,250,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
March 2, 2020 with interest at 2.00% payable semiannually in
March and September; principal payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on
March 1, 2025. Proceeds used to remodel buildings and
improvement projects and acquire moveable equipment.

FHN Financial
Capital Markets 4,250,000$       -$

Series 2019-20E Note
$4,500,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
April 22, 2020 with interest at 2.00% payable semiannually in
March and September; principal payments are varying
amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on
March 1, 2027. Proceeds used to remodel buildings and
improvement projects and acquire moveable equipment.

UMB Bank 4,500,000         -

Series 2019-20F Note
$4,525,000 general obligation promissory note payable issued
June 29, 2020 with interest at 1.625% to 1.75% payable
semiannually in March and September; principal payments
are varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until
maturity on March 1, 2029. Proceeds used to remodel
buildings and improvement projects and acquire moveable
equipment.

Robert W. Baird 
& Co.

4,525,000         -

Total General Obligation Debt 162,890,000$   165,650,000$ 
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Principal and interest maturities on notes, bonds, and capital lease payable:

Principal Interest Subtotal Principal Interest Subtotal
Years Ending June 30
2021 21,010,000$         5,207,036$         26,217,036$         3,617$        43,685$        47,302$        
2022 18,880,000           4,576,756           23,456,756           3,414          44,361          47,775          
2023 18,880,000           3,926,806           22,806,806           3,222          45,031          48,253          
2024 18,550,000           3,314,531           21,864,531           3,042          45,693          48,735          
2025 15,790,000           2,781,731           18,571,731           2,871          46,351          49,222          
2026-2030 (5 year total) 58,020,000           6,958,019           64,978,019           12,114        241,481        253,595        
Thereafter 11,760,000           638,644 12,398,644           3,948          101,076        105,024        

162,890,000$       27,403,524$       190,293,524$       32,227$      567,679$      599,906$      

Principal Interest Subtotal
Years Ending June 30
2021 21,013,617$         5,250,722$         26,264,338$         
2022 18,883,414           4,621,117           23,504,531           
2023 18,883,222           3,971,837           22,855,059           
2024 18,553,042           3,360,225           21,913,266           
2025 15,792,871           2,828,082           18,620,953           
2026-2030 (5 year total) 58,032,114           7,199,500           65,231,614           
Thereafter 11,763,948           739,720 12,503,668           

162,922,227$       27,971,203$       190,893,430$       

Capital Lease

Total

Notes/Bonds

2020 2019
5% Limit 4,749,895,601$         4,443,135,295$        
Aggregate Indebtedness 162,890,000$            165,650,000$           
Debt Service Funds Available 2,417,605$ 3,450,698$
Total Legal Debt Margin 4,589,423,206$         4,280,935,993$        

2020 2019
2% Limit 1,899,958,240$         1,777,254,118$        
Aggregate Indebtedness 162,890,000$            165,650,000$           
Debt Service Funds Available 2,417,605$ 3,450,698$
Total Legal Debt Margin 1,739,485,845$         1,615,054,816$        

Fiscal Year ending June 30

Fiscal Year ending June 30

The Wisconsin State Statutes Chapter 67.03(1) provides that the aggregate amount of indebtedness of a 
District shall not exceed 5% of the value of the taxable property located in the District.

The maximum bonded indebtedness of the District for purchasing and constructing buildings and 
equipment may not exceed 2% of the value of the taxable property within the District.  
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan description - The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS 
benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit 
terms may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin 
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of 
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a 
participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1200 hours a year 
(880 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be 
employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 

ETF issued a standalone WRS Financial Report, which can be found at http://etf.wi.gov/about-
etf/reports-and-studies/financial-reports-and-statements.

Vesting - For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively 
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for 
a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to 
July 1, 2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 
2011, must have five years of creditable service to be vested. 

Benefits provided - Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupations and 62 for 
elected officials and executive service retirement plan participants, if hired on or before 12/31/2016) 
are entitled to retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their final average earnings and creditable 
service. 

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest annual earnings periods. 
Creditable service includes current service and prior service for which a participant received earnings 
and made contributions as required. Creditable service also includes creditable military service. The 
retirement benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the employee’s 
contributions plus matching employer’s contributions, with interest, if that benefit is higher than the 
formula benefit.

Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an 
actuarially-reduced benefit. Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for an 
annuity may either receive employee-required contributions plus interest as a separation benefit or 
leave contributions on deposit and defer application until eligible to receive a retirement benefit. 

The District may elect to make a one-time actuarial reduction contribution to WRS on behalf of an 
employee retiring at age 57 or after, which would allow the District employee to receive a retirement 
benefit that has not been actuarially reduced. Total actuarial reduction contributions paid for the years 
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $0 and $13,331, respectively.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Post-Retirement Adjustments - The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity 
payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance with s. 
40.27, Wis. Stat. An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains 
(losses), together with other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as 
determined by the system’s consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or 
other similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted 
increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed 
amount (the “floor”) set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent 
years are as follows:

Year Core Fund 
Adjustment

Variable Fund 
Adjustment

2010 (1.3) 22
2011 (1.2) 11
2012 (7.0) (7)
2013 (9.6) 9
2014 4.7 25
2015 2.9 2
2016 0.5 (5.0)
2017 2.0 4.0
2018 2.4 17
2019 0.0 (10)

Contributions - Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance 
with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the 
actuarially determined contribution rate for general category employees, including teachers, Executives 
and Elected Officials. Starting on January 1, 2016, the Executives and Elected Officials category was 
merged into the General Employee Category. Required contributions for protective employees are the 
same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially 
determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless 
provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement. 

During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $6,751,306 in contributions from the employer. All 
District employees covered by the WRS fall under the General category.

Contribution rates as of June 30, 2020 are:

Employee Category Employee Employer
General (including teachers) 6.75% 6.75%

Contribution rates as of June 30, 2019 are:

Employee Category Employee Employer
General (including teachers) 6.55% 6.55%
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability (asset) of ($20,779,547) for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of 
December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018 rolled forward to 
December 31, 2019. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the 
actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability 
(asset) was based on the District’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions 
of all participating employers. At December 31, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.6444%, which was 
a decrease of 0.0000% from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018.

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability (asset) of $22,926,533 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of 
December 31, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017 rolled forward to 
December 31, 2018. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the 
actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
(asset) was based on the District’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions 
of all participating employers. At December 31, 2018, the District’s proportion was 0.6444%, which was 
a decrease of 0.0023% from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2017.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $8,041,781 
and $15,666,141, respectively. 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and 
actual experience

$39,444,332 $19,739,248

Net differences between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments

0 42,480,783

Changes in assumptions 1,619,278 0
Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions

149,840 35,704

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date

3,466,644 0

Total $44,680,094 $62,255,735
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

The $3,466,644 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability (asset) in the year ended June 30, 2021. 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and 
actual experience

$17,856,297 $31,563,512

Net differences between projected 
and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments

33,482,630 0

Changes in assumptions 3,864,575 0
Changes in proportion and 
differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions

360,068 58,716

Employer contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date

3,372,481 0

Total $58,936,051 $31,622,228

The $3,372,481 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date was recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability (asset) in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 
30:

Net 
Outflows/(Inflows) 

of Resources
2020 $(6,170,440)
2021 (4,675,173)
2022 727,824
2023 (10,924,496)

Actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the total pension liability in the December 
31, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement:
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Actuarial Valuation Date:   December 31, 2018
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability 
(Asset)

  December 31, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method:   Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method:   Fair Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:      7.0%
Discount Rate:   7.0%
Salary Increases: 
Inflation
Seniority/Merit

  3.0%
  0.1% - 5.6%

Mortality:   Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table
Post-retirement Adjustments*   1.9%*

* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized
investment return, actuarial experience and other factors. 1.9% is the assumed annual adjustment
based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that covered a three-
year period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. The Total Pension Liability for December 31, 
2019 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated from the December 31, 2018 actuarial 
valuation. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the total pension liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in 
the measurement:

Actuarial Valuation Date:   December 31, 2017
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability 
(Asset)

  December 31, 2018

Actuarial Cost Method:   Entry Age 
Asset Valuation Method:   Fair Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:      7.0%
Discount Rate:   7.0%
Salary Increases: 
Inflation
Seniority/Merit

  3.0%
  0.1% - 5.6%

Mortality:   Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table
Post-retirement Adjustments*   1.9%*

* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized
investment return, actuarial experience and other factors. 1.9% is the assumed annual adjustment
based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that covered a three-
year period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. Based on this experience study, actuarial 
assumptions used to measure the total pension liability changed from prior year, including the discount 
rate, long-term expected rate of return, post-retirement adjustment, wage inflation rate, mortality and 
separation rates. The Total Pension Liability for December 31, 2018 is based upon a roll-forward of the 
liability calculated from the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation. 

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected 
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

For the year ended June 30, 2020:

Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Returns
As of December 31, 2019

Core Fund Asset Class
Asset Allocation 

%

Long-Term
Expected 
Nominal

Rate of Return 
%

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of Return %
Global Equities 49 8.0 5.1
Fixed Income 24.5 4.9 2.1
Inflation Sensitive Assets 15.5 4.0 1.2
Real Estate 9 6.3 3.5
Private Equity/Debt 8 10.6 7.6
Multi-Asset 4 6.9 4.0
Total Core Fund 110 7.5 4.6

Variable Fund Asset Class
U.S. Equities 70 7.5 4.6
International Equities 30 8.2 5.3
Total Variable Fund 100 7.8 4.9

New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast: 2.75%
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges; target percentages may differ 
from actual monthly allocations
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2019:

Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Returns
As of December 31, 2018

Core Fund Asset Class
Asset Allocation 

%

Long-Term
Expected 
Nominal

Rate of Return 
%

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of Return %
Global Equities 49 8.1 5.5
Fixed Income 24.5 4.0 1.5
Inflation Sensitive Assets 15.5 3.8 1.3
Real Estate 9 6.5 3.9
Private Equity/Debt 8 9.4 6.7
Multi-Asset 4 6.7 4.1
Total Core Fund 110 7.3 4.7

Variable Fund Asset 
Class
U.S. Equities 70 7.6 5.0
International Equities 30 8.5 5.9
Total Variable Fund 100 8.0 5.4

New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast: 2.5%
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges; target percentages may differ 
from actual monthly allocations

Single Discount rate - A single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure the Total Pension Liability 
for the current and prior year. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 2.75% (Source: Fixed-income 
municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as 
reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” as of December 31, 2019. In describing 
this index, Fidelity notes that the Municipal Curves are constructed using option-adjusted analytics of 
a diverse population of over 10,000 tax-exempt securities.). Because of the unique structure of WRS, 
the 7.00% expected rate of return implies that a dividend of approximately 1.9% will always be paid. 
For purposes of the single discount rate, it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made 
at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. 
Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments (including expected dividends) of current plan members. 
Therefore, the municipal bond rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in 
the discount rate - The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent as well as the District’s proportionate share 
of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (6.00 percent) or a 1-percentage-point higher (8.00 percent) than the current 
rate:  

For the year ended June 30, 2020:

1% Decrease 
to Discount 
Rate (6.00%)

Current Discount 
Rate (7.00%)

1% Increase To 
Discount Rate 

(8.00%)
District’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset)

$53,511,048 ($20,779,547) ($76,320,312)

For the year ended June 30, 2019:

1% Decrease 
to Discount 
Rate (6.20%)

Current Discount 
Rate (7.20%)

1% Increase To 
Discount Rate 

(8.20%)
District’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset)

$91,112,444 $22,926,533 ($27,774,980)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in separately issued financial statements available at the Department of Employee 
Trust Fund’s website: http://etf.wi.gov/about-etf/reports-and-studies/financial-reports-and-statements.

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Health Insurance)

Plan description. The District’s group health insurance plan provides coverage to active employees 
and retirees at blended premium rates. This results in another postemployment benefit (OPEB) for the 
retirees, commonly referred to as an implicit rate subsidy. The plan, Madison College Retiree Medical 
Plan, is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the District and does not issue 
a stand-alone financial report. The State of Wisconsin Administrative Code grants the authority to 
establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements to the District Board. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.

Benefits provided. Participants are eligible for full benefits upon retirement at age 57 with at least 20 
years of full-time service (“57 and 20”) or at age 60 with at least 15 years of full-time service (“60 and 
15”). Participants who retire at age 55 with at least five years of full-time service are eligible to remain 
in the college’s health insurance plan by paying 100% of the premium. 

The District contributes 100% of a single retiree premium until age 65 or Medicare eligible, whichever 
is sooner. The District’s funding policy is to provide annual contributions on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Health Insurance continued) 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2020, the following employees were covered by 
the benefit terms:

Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources related to OPEB. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the valuation date is June 30, 
2019. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the valuation date is June 30, 2017. The measurement date 
is June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively. The measurement is the date as of which the total 
OPEB liability is determined. 

The total OPEB liability for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 of $9,802,424 and $9,844,597, 
respectively, was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date, calculated based on 
the discount rate and actuarial assumptions and was then projected forward to the measurement date.

For the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense/(benefit) of 
($390,340) and ($1,739,303), respectively.

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources:

The $1,019,951 reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from employer’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date is recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2021.

2020 2019
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 118 129
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 0 0
Active employees 954 961

Total 1072 1090

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
Deferred Inflows / Outflows of Resources of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,230,280 $ 0
Changes of assumptions 0 1,184,722
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 1,019,951 0
Total 2,250,231 1,184,722



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

69

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Health Insurance continued)

At June 30, 2019, the District reported deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources:

The $1,069,228 reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from employer’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date is recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2020.

Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to other postemployment benefits will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The actuarial assumptions that determined the total OPEB 
liability as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 were based on the results of actuarial experience studies 
dated 2015-2017 and 2012-2014, respectively, for the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS).

The discount rate was based on the 20-year Bond Buyer GO Index.

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
Deferred Inflows / Outflows of Resources of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 0 0
Changes of assumptions 0 351,886
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 1,069,228 0
Total 1,069,228 351,886

2021 $ (34,292)
2022 (34,292)
2023 21,506
2024 59,619
2025 33,017

Net Deferred 
Outflows/Inflows of 

Resources
Year ending June 30:

Fiscal Year June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Valuation date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2017
Measurement date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Discount rate 3.50% 3.87%
20 Year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Yield 3.50% 3.87%
Healthcare cost trend 7.90% 4.00% - 6.50%
Salary increases including inflation WRS: see actuarial assumptions for details WRS: see actuarial assumptions for details
Mortality WRS: see actuarial assumptions for details WRS: see actuarial assumptions for details
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
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NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Health Insurance continued)

Mortality rates were based on the following criteria:

Pre-retirement: This assumption applies to death while in service. Rates are based on the 
Wisconsin 2018 Mortality table (multiplied by 50% for males and females) as the 
base table and project future improvements with 2018 generational improvement 
scale (multiplied by 60%), as adopted by the Board in connection with the 2015-
2017 Experience Study performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin Retirement 
System.

Post-retirement: This assumption applies to death of participants after retirement. Rates are 
based on the Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table as the base table and project future 
improvements with 2018 generational improvement scale (multiplied by 60%), 
as adopted by the Board in connection with the 2015-2017 Experience Study 
performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin Retirement System.

Post-Disability: This assumption applies to death after disablement. Rates are based on the 
2015-2017 Experience Study performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin 
Retirement System as the base table and project future improvements with 2018 
generational improvement scale (multiplied by 60%) as adopted by the Board in 
connection with the 2015-17 Experience Study performed by the actuary for the 
Wisconsin Retirement System.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability FY 2020 FY 2019

Beginning of Year Balances $ 9,844,597 $ 10,560,026

Changes for the year:
Service cost 409,567 413,526
Interest on total OPEB liability 374,048 368,862
Effect of plan changes 0 0
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 1,503,675 0
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (1,140,523) (145,673)
Benefit payments (1,188,940) (1,352,144)

End of Year Balances $ 9,802,424 $ 9,844,597

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB

Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB

Liability
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NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Health Insurance continued)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in discount rate. The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the District, calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 
percentage point higher than the current discount rate.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the District, calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates 
that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rate.

2019-2020
1%  Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2.50% 3.50% 4.50%

Total OPEB Liability 10,302,130$  9,802,424$     9,311,444$     

2018-2019
1%  Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2.87% 3.87% 4.87%

Total OPEB Liability 10,347,836$  9,844,597$     9,347,904$     

2019-2020
1%  Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

6.90% 7.90% 9.90%

Total OPEB Liability 9,023,100$    9,802,424$     10,712,952$   

2018-2019
1%  Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
3.00%-5.50% 4.00%-6.50% 5.00%-7.50%

Total OPEB Liability 8,951,107$    9,844,597$     10,892,975$   
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Life Insurance)

Plan description. The Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund (LRLIF) is a multiple-employer defined benefit 
OPEB plan. LRLIF benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes. The Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) and the Group Insurance Board 
have statutory authority for program administration and oversight. The plan provides post-employment 
life insurance benefits for all eligible employees. 

OPEB Plan fiduciary Net Position. ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR), which can be found at http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.

Additionally, ETF issued a standalone Retiree Life Insurance Financial Report, which can be found at 
https://etfonline.wi.gove/EFTGASBPublicWeb/gasb75Local.do

Benefits provided. The LRLIF plan provides fully paid up life insurance benefits for post-age 64 retired 
employees and pre-65 retirees who pay for their coverage. 

Contributions. The Group Insurance Board approves contribution rates annually, based on 
recommendations from the insurance carrier. Recommended rates are based on an annual valuation, 
taking into consideration an estimate of the present value of future benefits and the present value of 
future contributions. A portion of employer contributions made during a member’s working lifetime funds 
a post-retirement benefit.

Employers are required to pay the following contributions based on member contributions for active 
members to provide them with Basic Coverage after age 65. There are no employer contributions 
required for pre-age 65 annuitant coverage. If a member retires prior to age 65, they must continue 
paying the employee premiums until age 65 in order to be eligible for the benefit after age 65.

Contribution rates for both June 30, 2020 and 2019 are:

Member contributions are based upon nine age bands through age 69 and an additional eight age 
bands for those age 70 and over. Participating members must pay monthly contribution rates per 
$1,000 of coverage until the age of 65 (age 70 if active). The member contribution rates in effect for the 
year ended December 31, 2019 are listed below:

Coverage Type Employer contribution
50% Post Retirement Coverage 40% of employee contribution
25% Post Retirement Coverage 20% of employee contribution
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Life Insurance) (continued)

During the reporting period, the LRLIF recognized $81,337 in contributions from the employer.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources related to OPEBs. At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability (asset) of $19,159,092 
for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset). The net OPEB liability (asset) was measured 
as of December 31, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability (asset) 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2019 rolled forward to December 31, 2019. 
No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date
and the measurement date. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) was based on the 
District’s share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all participating 
employers. At December 31, 2019, the District’s proportion was 4.4993%, which was a decrease of 
.0779% from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $2,074,180. For the year 
ended June 30, 2020 the District recognized OPEB expense of $1,693,840 for all OPEB plans.

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability (asset) of $11,810,878 for its proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability (asset). The net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2018, 
and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability (asset) was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017 rolled forward to December 31, 2018. No material changes 
in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement 
date. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) was based on the District’s share of 
contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December 
31, 2018, the District’s proportion was 4.5773%, which was an increase of .0926% from its proportion 
measured as of December 31, 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $1,250,999. For the year 
ended June 30, 2019 the District recognized OPEB expense/(benefit) of ($488,301) for all OPEB plans.

Attained Age
Under 30 $ 0.05 $ 0.05

30-34 0.06 0.06
35-39 0.07 0.07
40-44 0.08 0.08
45-49 0.12 0.12
50-54 0.22 0.22
55-59 0.39 0.39
60-64 0.49 0.49
65-69 0.57 0.57

Life Insurance

Basic Supplemental

*Disabled members under age 70 receive a waiver-of-premium benefit.

Employee Contribution Rates*
For the year ended December 31, 2019
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Life Insurance) (continued)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEBs from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and 
actual experience

$0 $858,302

Net differences between projected and 
actual earnings on OPEB plan 
investments

361,409 0

Changes in Assumptions 7,067,875 2,107,356

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions

373,575 198,279

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date

133,337 0

Total $7,936,196 $3,163,937

$133,337 reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from the LRLIF Employer’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB 
liability (asset) in the year ended June 30, 2021. 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEBs from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience

$0 $599,155

Net differences between projected and 
actual earnings on OPEB plan 
investments

282,259 0

Changes in Assumptions 1,126,940 2,560,130

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions

451,211 0

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date

134,750 0

Total $1,995,160 $3,159,285
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Life Insurance) (continued)

$134,750 reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from the LRLIF Employer’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB 
liability (asset) in the year ended June 30, 2020.

As of June 30, 2020, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2020 and 2019, actuarial valuations 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that covered a three-
year period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. The total OPEB liability for December 31, 
2019 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated from the January 1, 2019 actuarial 
valuation. 

The total OPEB liability for December 31, 2018 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated 
from the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation.

Year ending June 30:

2020 $ 808,491
2021 808,491
2022 769,523
2023 729,385
2024 588,297
2025 937,666
Thereafter (2,931)

Net Deferred 
Outflows/Inflows of 

Resources

Fiscal Year June 30,2020 June 30,2019
Valuation date January 1, 2019 January 1, 2018
Measurement date December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
20 year tax-exempt municipal bond yield 2.74% 4.10%
Long-term expected rate of return 4.25% 5.00%
Discount rate 2.87% 3.63%
Salary increases:
         Inflation 3.00% 3.00%
         Seniority/Merit 0.1% - 5.6% 0.1% - 5.6%
Mortality Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Life Insurance) (continued)

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return is determined by 
adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and 
correlation. Investments for the LRLIF are held with Securian, the insurance carrier. Interest is 
calculated and credited to the LRLIF based on the rate of return for a segment of the insurance carriers’ 
general fund, specifically 10-year A-Bonds (as a proxy, and not tied to any specific investments). The 
overall aggregate interest rate is calculated using a tiered approach based on the year the funds were 
originally invested and the rate of return for that year. Investment interest is credited based on 
aggregate rate of return and assets are not adjusted to fair market value. Furthermore, the insurance 
carrier guarantees the principal amounts of the reserves, including all interest previously credited 
thereto.

Long-Term
Expected 

Target Geometric Real
Asset Class Index Allocation Rate of Return
US Credit Bonds Barclays Credit 45% 2.12%
US Long Credit Bonds Barclays Long Credit 5% 2.90%
US Mortgages Barclays MBS 50% 1.53%

Inflation 2.20%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 4.25%

Local OPEB Life Insurance
Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Returns

As of December 31, 2019

Long-Term
Expected 

Target Geometric Real
Asset Class Index Allocation Rate of Return
US Government Bonds Barclays Government 1% 1.44%
US Credit Bonds Barclays Credit 40% 2.69%
US Long Credit Bonds Barclays Long Credit 4% 3.01%
US Mortgages Barclays MBS 54% 2.25%
US Mnicipal Bonds Bloomberg Barclays Mun 1% 1.68%

Inflation 2.30%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 5.00%

As of December 31, 2018

Local OPEB Life Insurance
Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Returns
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Life Insurance) (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return decreased slightly from 5.00% in the prior year to 4.25% in the 
current year. This change was primarily based on the target asset allocation and capital market 
expectations. The expected inflation rate also decreased slightly from 2.3% in the prior year to 2.20% 
in the current year. The long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding expected inflation to 
expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation.

Single Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 2.87% was used to measure the Total OPEB Liability 
for the current year, as opposed to a discount rate of 4.22% for the prior year. The significant change 
in the discount rate was primarily caused by the decrease in the municipal bond rate from 4.10% as of 
December 31, 2018 to 2.74% as of December 31, 2019. The Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected 
to be insufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. 
Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB Liability is equal to the single equivalent 
rate that results in the same actuarial present value as the long-term expected rate of return applied to 
benefit payments, to the extent that the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to make 
projected benefit payments, and the municipal bond rate applied to benefit payments to the extent that 
the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be insufficient. The plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 
December 31, 2036.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the single discount rate assumed that employer 
contributions will be made according to the current employer contribution schedule and that 
contributions are made by plan members retiring prior to age 65.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in 
the Discount Rate. The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 2.87 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (1.87 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.87 percent) than the current rate:

2019-2020
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

1.87% 2.87% 3.87%

District's proportionate share 
of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $26,455,496 $19,159,092 $13,607,948

2018-2019
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

3.22% 4.22% 5.22%
District's proportionate share 
of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $16,801,756 $11,810,878 $7,961,550
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NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The District has a number of lease agreements for the rental of classroom, office, and lab space with 
varying expiration dates. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are:

The District’s other operating leases are primarily month-to-month and year-to-year for instructional 
facilities and equipment. Rent expenses under all operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2020 
and 2019 were $1,285,276 and $1,313,394 respectively.

Capital Leases

Effective in 1983, the District entered into a 99-year agreement with Dane County to lease land for the 
Truax Campus. Beginning April 1, 2033 and continuing thereafter, the District has the option to 
purchase the leased land. The purchase price is equal to the original base value increased by a rate of 
1% for every year that passed since 1983. This lease has been accounted for as a capital lease; as 
such, the leased land has been capitalized at the original base value of $570,000.

Future minimum lease payments required under the capital lease by year and the net present value of 
the minimum lease payments under this lease as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Capital Leases
Year Ending June 30

2021 $ 47,302
2022 47,775
2023 48,253
2024 48,735
2025 49,222
Thereafter 358,619

Total required minimum lease payments 599,906
Less amount representing interest (567,679)       
Net Present Value of minimum lease payments $ 32,227

Year Ending June 30
2021 $ 1,168,317
2022 895,136
2023 114,554
2024 45,480
2025 46,844
Thereafter 414,218
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NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

Districts Mutual Insurance Company (DMI)

In July 2004, all sixteen WTCS technical colleges collaborated to create Districts Mutual Insurance 
Company (DMI). Districts Mutual Insurance Company is a fully-assessable mutual company authorized 
under Wisconsin Statute 611 to provide worker compensation (in-state and out-of-state policies), 
property, casualty, equipment breakdown, cyber risk, deadly weapon, and terrorism coverage, as well 
as liability and risk management services to its members. The scope of insurance protection provided 
by DMI is broad, covering property at $500,000,000 per occurrence; general liability, auto, and 
educators’ legal liability at $5,000,000 per occurrence; and workers’ compensation at the Wisconsin 
statutorily required limits. 

At this time, settled claims have not approached the coverage limits as identified above. The District’s 
exposure in its layer of insurance is limited to $5,000 to $100,000 per occurrence depending on the 
type of coverage, and DMI purchases reinsurance for losses in excess of its retained layer of coverage.

DMI operations are governed by a five-member board of directors. Member colleges do not exercise 
any control over the activities of DMI beyond election of the board of directors at the annual meeting. 
The board has the authority to adopt its own budget, set policy matters, and control the financial affairs 
of the company.

For the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District paid DMI insurance premiums of $830,040 
and $813,636 respectively. The worker compensation premiums are audited annually in October for 
the previous fiscal year. 

The DMI financial statements can be obtained through Districts Mutual Insurance Co., 212 West 
Pinehurst Trail, Dakota Dunes, SD 57049.

Supplemental Insurance

In July 1997, the WTCS technical colleges formed the WTCS Insurance Trust to jointly purchase 
commercial insurance to provide coverage for losses from theft of, damages to, or destruction of assets. 
The trust is organized under Wisconsin Statutes 66.0301 and is governed by a board of trustees 
consisting of one trustee from each member college. Member entities include all sixteen Wisconsin 
Technical College System districts.

The WTCS Insurance Trust has purchased the following levels of coverage from Arthur J. Gallagher 
for its participating members: 

Crime:  $750,000 coverage for employee dishonesty, forgery, computer fraud and funds transfer fraud; 
$750,000 coverage for theft, robbery, burglary, disappearance and destruction of money and securities; 
$25,000 coverage for investigation expenses; $5,000 deductible for investigation, employee 
dishonesty, forgery and fraud.

Foreign liability:  $5,000,000 aggregate general; $1,000,000 auto per accident; $1,000,000 employee 
benefits; includes benefit for accidental death and dismemberment, repatriation, and medical 
expenses; $1,000 deductible for employee benefits.
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NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Business Travel Accident: Commercial; $1,000,000 per occurrence; $5,000,000 aggregate; $2,000,000 
aggregate (products-completed operations); $1,000,000 (personal and advertising injury); $1,000,000 
(damage to premised – rented); $25,000 medical expenses. Employee; $1,000,000 per claim; 
$1,000,000 aggregate. Auto Liability; $1,000,000 per accident. $1,000 deductible.

In addition to employee health insurance, the District also purchases the following additional insurance:

Athletics:  Basic sports coverage; $25,000 maximum medical benefits per injury; $0 deductible. 
Catastrophic sports coverage; $5 million maximum per incident; $25,000 deductible. Basic coverage is 
secondary to the student’s personal insurance coverage.

Underground Storage Tanks: Policy aggregates include $1,000,000 per tank incident (claims and 
remediation); $1,000,000 aggregate per tank incident (confirmed release); $1,000,000 aggregate per 
tank incident (all legal defense expenses); $3,000,000 total policy aggregate for all incidents; $25,000 
deductible. 

Surety Bonds – Motorcycle Program: $30,000 surety bond as required by the Wisconsin Department 
of Transportation for motorcycle training programs. 

NOTE 10 – SELF-INSURANCE

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property and casualty claims. Under the 
program, the self-insurance fund provides coverage for property and casualty claims which are either 
in excess of policy coverage limits or less than or equal to deductible amounts on certain policies. The 
District purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund and for 
all other risks of loss. 

Settled dental claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage, and there have been no 
reductions in insurance coverage in the past three years.

The claims liability is reported as accounts payable and is based on the requirement that a liability for 
claims be reported, if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 
probable a liability has been incurred at the financial statement date and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. 

Changes in the dental claims liability for the years ended June 30 were as follows:

Fiscal 
Year

Beginning 
Balance

Plus: 
Claims

Less: 
Payments

Ending 
Balance

2020 64,100$   1,354,774$ 1,350,574$ 68,300$       
2019 78,700$   1,536,637$ 1,551,237$ 64,100$       
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NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES

The District receives regular program aids from the Wisconsin Technical College System Board based 
on aidable expenditures. This amount is subject to adjustment based on a state audit of the full-time 
equivalent students and cost allocation reports of the District and other districts of the state. The state
audit for the year ended June 30, 2020 has not been completed. It is the belief of management of the 
District that audit adjustments, if any, will not materially affect the District’s financial position.

The District has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and 
audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor 
agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes such 
disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

The District is involved in numerous other lawsuits, many of which normally occur in governmental 
operations. No provision has been made for any liability as a result of these proceedings due to the 
fact that such liability is not readily estimable and not expected by management to materially affect the 
District’s financial position.

NOTE 12 - EXPENSES CLASSIFICATION

Expenses on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position are classified by 
function. Alternatively, the expenses could also be shown by type of expense, as follows for the year 
ended June 30: 

2020 2019

Salaries and wages 107,495,144$   105,561,640$   
Fringe benefits 34,610,224       40,605,187       
Travel, memberships and subscriptions 2,483,471         2,139,675         
Supplies 13,385,844 19,054,095
Postage 191,777            110,521            
Contract services 20,758,266       17,107,209       
Rentals 1,355,305         1,469,762         
Credit/Collection Expenses 224,484            685,403            
Insurance 981,510            812,331            
Utilities 2,119,726         2,921,006         
Depreciation 24,844,391 22,132,771
Student aid 9,369,253         9,654,314         

Total Operating Expenses 217,819,395$   222,253,914$   
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NOTE 13 – RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Net Position as of July 1, 2018, has been restated as a result of the implementation of the Government 
Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities, which required the District 
to record the fiduciary activities separate from the District’s government-wide financial statements. In 
addition, those activities that were custodial in nature but did not meet the criteria of a fiduciary activity 
were restated and presented under the special revenue non-aidable funds under its true classifications 
and no longer consolidated under a liability within that pooled fund. The details of this restatement are 
as follows:

NOTE 14 – LEASES ON DISTRICT OWNED/LEASED SPACE

The District has leases with companies to operate businesses on District owned space. As of 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District leases space to five and six unique tenants respectively. The total 
anticipated lease payments to be made to the College are $113,043 for fiscal year 2020-21. 
Expenditures for the leased spaces are anticipated to exceed the revenue received.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Budget Revisions

The District Board authorized various expenditure budget revisions. The purpose of these revisions 
was to appropriately eliminate all material negative budget variances. These revisions were 
accomplished by reallocating among various budget classifications without affecting the total budgeted 
expenditures.

Debt Issuance

On July 13, 2020, the District issued General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2020-21A, totaling 
$3,500,000 with interest rates at 3.0% payable on March 1 and September 1 annually. Principal 
payments of varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on 
March 1, 2022. Proceeds will be used for paying the cost of the acquisition of moveable equipment, 
building remodeling and improvement projects. The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity.

District Financial Fiduciary Fund
Statements Statements

Net Position - June 30, 2018 (as reported) $ 156,656,885 $ 0
Plus: Prior period adjustment for Fiduciary Activities  per GASB 84 1,394,990 455,704

Net Position - July 1, 2018 (Beginning of the year as restated) 158,051,875 455,704

Net Position - June 30, 2019 (end of year) $ 155,649,815 $ 455,704
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NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

On August 5, 2020, the District issued General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2020-21B, totaling 
$3,500,000 with interest rates of 4.0% payable on March 1 and September 1 annually. Principal 
payments of varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on March 1, 2022. 
Proceeds will be used for paying the cost of the acquisition of moveable equipment, building remodeling 
and improvement projects. The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

On August 5, 2020, the District issued Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2020, 
totaling $7,965,000 with a true interest cost of 1.23% payable March 1 and September 1 annually. The 
Refunded Obligations are the Series 2012-13A Bonds maturing in the years 2024 through 2033. The 
present value debt service savings achieved by the Refunding is $1,198,652.36 or 12.958% of the 
principal amount refunded. 

On September 2, 2020, the District issued General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2020-21C, 
totaling $3,500,000 with interest rate of 5.0% payable March 1 and September 1 annually. Principal 
payments of varying amounts are due on March 1 of each year until maturity on March 1, 2022. 
Proceeds will be used for paying the cost of the acquisition of moveable equipment, building remodeling 
and improvement projects. The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

COVID-19 Pandemic

During 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) 
a worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant effects on global markets, supply 
chains, businesses, and communities. Specific to the District, COVID-19 may impact various parts of 
its fiscal year 2021 operations and financial results. Management believes the District is taking 
appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown 
and cannot be reasonably estimated as these events occurred subsequent to year-end and are still 
developing

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.
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*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred
within the fiscal year.

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred
within the fiscal year.

The schedules above are intended to show information for ten years and additional years’ information will 
be displayed as it becomes available.

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
District's proportion of the net pension liability 
(asset) 0.6444% 0.6444% 0.6467% 0.6471% 0.6633% 0.6846%
District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) (20,779,547) 22,926,533 (19,199,954) 5,333,502 10,778,119 (16,814,521)
District's covered-employee payroll 102,455,176 97,563,127 97,331,263 92,244,957 90,934,540 91,871,959
District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability/asset as a percentage of its 
covered payroll -20.3% 23.5% -19.7% 5.8% 11.9% 18.3%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability (asset) 103.0% 96.5% 102.9% 99.1% 98.2% 102.7%

Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Wisconsin Retirement System

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONALTE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contributions 6,751,306 6,534,019 6,618,437 6,141,285 6,187,208 6,436,255
Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contributions 6,751,306 6,534,019 6,618,437 6,141,285 6,187,208 6,436,255
Contribution deficiency (excess) 0 0 0 0 0 0
District's covered-employee payroll 102,455,176 97,563,127 97,331,263 92,987,378 90,934,540 91,871,959
Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 6.59% 6.70% 6.80% 6.60% 6.80% 7.01%

Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Wisconsin Retirement System

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS
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*No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No.
75 for this plan in any years presented.

2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 410$       414$     452$     
Interest on total OPEB liability 374         369       330       
Changes in benefit terms -          -        -        
Effect of economic/demographic gains (losses) 1,504      -        -        
Effect of assumption changes or inputs (1,141)     (146) (379)
Benefit payments (1,189)     (1,352)   (1,934)   
Net change in total OPEB liability (42) (715) (1,531)   

Total OPEB liability, beginning 9,845      10,560  12,091  
Total OPEB liability, ending 9,802$    9,845$  10,560$

Covered payroll 102,455$ 97,563$ 97,331$

Total OPEB as a % of covered payroll 9.6% 10.1% 10.8%

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accordance with the
current GASB standards, they should not be reported.

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

Total OPEB Health Insurance Liability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

June 30, 2020

Schedule of Changes in the District's

(in 1,000s)
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*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred
within the fiscal year.  The schedules above are intended to show information for ten years and additional
years’ information will be displayed as it becomes available.

2020 2019 2018
District's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) 4.50% 4.58% 4.48%
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability (asset) 19,159,092$  11,810,878$  13,492,486$  
District's covered-employee payroll 79,772,000$  80,274,000$  188,593,160$
District's collective Net OPEB Liability (Asset) as a 
percentage of the empoyer's covered-employee 
payroll 24.02% 14.71% 7.15%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPEB liability (asset) 37.58% 48.69% 44.81%

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)

Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2020 2019 2018
Contractually required contributions 81,337$         88,188$         85,165$         
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contributions 81,337$         88,188$         85,165$         
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$ -$ -$
District's covered-employee payroll 79,772,000$  80,274,000$  188,593,160$
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 0.10% 0.11% 0.05%

Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICTS CONTRIBUTIONS
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2020:

Changes of benefit terms for Pensions. There were no changes of benefit terms for any 
participating employer in WRS.

Changes of assumptions for Pensions. No significant change in assumptions were noted from 
the prior year.

Changes of benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating 
employer in LRLIF.

Changes of benefit terms for OPEB Health Benefits. There were no changes of benefit terms 
for any participating employer in OPEB health insurance fund.

Changes of assumptions for OPEB Health Benefits. 
! Demographic assumptions have been updated based upon the most recent WRS

experience study.
! Estimated annual claim costs were changed to reflect anticipated experience pursuant to

a review of the medical provisions and current premiums.
! Medical trend rates were changed to reflect anticipated experience under the most

recent Getzen model application.
! The discount rate has been updated to comply with GASB 75.

The overall impact of the new assumptions is a decrease in the benefit obligations.



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The following supplementary information is provided to document Madison College’s compliance
with budgetary requirements.  This accountability is an essential requirement to maintain the
public trust.  The method of accounting used for budgetary compliance monitoring is substantially
different from the method of preparing the basic financial statements of the District.  At the end of
this section is reconciliation between the two methods.
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FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis  Basis (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Local government 42,778,000$     43,219,000$        43,218,523$     -$  43,218,523$        (477)$  
Intergovernmental revenue

State 73,156,000       74,165,000          74,164,486       - 74,164,486 (514) 
Federal 232,000            267,000               266,009            - 266,009 (991) 

Tuition and fees
Statutory program fees 35,914,000       34,692,000          34,691,018       - 34,691,018 (982) 
Material fees 1,292,000         1,238,000            1,237,575         - 1,237,575 (425) 
Other student fees 1,927,000         1,749,000            1,748,549         - 1,748,549 (451) 

Institutional 1,169,000         1,554,000            1,553,894         - 1,553,894 (106) 

Total revenues 156,468,000     156,884,000        156,880,054     - 156,880,054 (3,946) 

Expenditures
Instruction 109,300,000     109,400,000        109,399,174     - 109,399,174 826 
Instructional resources 3,558,000         3,038,000            3,037,995         - 3,037,995 5 
Student services 17,310,000       15,960,000          15,959,294       - 15,959,294 706 
General institutional 15,821,000       14,822,000          14,821,524       - 14,821,524 476 
Physical plant 12,681,000       11,777,000          11,776,392       - 11,776,392 608 
Public service 490,000            467,000               466,765            - 466,765 235 

Total expenditures 159,160,000     155,464,000        155,461,144     - 155,461,144 2,856 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures (2,692,000)        1,420,000            1,418,910         - 1,418,910 (1,090) 

Other financing uses
Transfers out - (963,000) (959,185)          - (959,185) 3,815 

Net change in fund balance (2,692,000)        457,000               459,725            - 459,725 2,725 

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 51,679,240       51,732,028          51,732,028       - 51,732,028 - 

Fund balance at June 30, 2020 48,987,240$     52,189,028$        52,191,753$     -$ 52,191,753$  2,725$  

Fund balance
Assigned for future purchases -$  

165,781            
2,740 

Assigned for compensated absences 8,964,177         
1,306,200         

Assigned for subsequent year 653,100            
Assigned for subsequent years 1,959,300         
Assigned for operations 39,140,455       

52,191,753$     

Nonspendable - prepaid items and advances
Nonspendable - noncurrent assets

Assigned for state aid fluctuations
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 IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Local government - tax levy 1,574,000$    1,562,000$    1,561,538$    -$  1,561,538$    (462)$  
Intergovernmental revenue

State 1,204,000      1,295,000      1,294,834      - 1,294,834 (166) 
Federal 4,783,000      5,029,000      4,444,472      - 4,444,472 (584,528)             

Tuition and fees
Program fees 167,000         123,000         122,786         - 122,786 (214) 
Material fees 59,000           45,000           44,490           - 44,490 (510) 
Other student fees 1,147,000      817,000         816,190         - 816,190 (810) 

Institutional 3,077,000      3,064,000      3,063,959      - 3,063,959 (41) 

Total revenues 12,011,000    11,935,000    11,348,269    - 11,348,269 (586,731)             

Expenditures
Instruction 9,803,000      8,816,000      8,713,302      - 8,713,302 102,698              
Instructional resources 110,000         109,000         102,612         - 102,612 6,388 
Student services 2,090,000      2,597,000      2,259,066      - 2,259,066 337,934              
General institutional - 172,000 171,858         171,858 142 
Physical plant 8,000 241,000 240,240         - 240,240 760 

Total expenditures 12,011,000    11,935,000    11,487,078    - 11,487,078 447,922              

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures - - (138,809)        - (138,809) (138,809)             

Other financing sources
Transfers in - 143,000 142,701         - 142,701 (299) 

Net change in 
fund balance - 143,000 3,892            - 3,892 (139,108)             

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 882,387         1,154,995      1,154,995      - 1,154,995 - 
Fund balance at June 30, 2020 882,387$       1,297,995$    1,158,887$    -$ 1,158,887$    (139,108)$           
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SPECIAL REVENUE NON-AIDABLE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Local government - tax levy 180,000$       191,000$          190,957$       -$  190,957$       (43)$  
Intergovernmental revenue

State 2,770,000      2,780,000         2,816,333      - 2,816,333 36,333 
Federal 39,544,000    39,653,000       34,006,701    - 34,006,701 (5,646,299)         

Other Student Fees 809,293         - 809,293 809,293 
Institutional 613,000         617,000            4,428,297      - 4,428,297 3,811,297 

Total revenues 43,107,000    43,241,000       42,251,581    - 42,251,581 (989,419)            

Expenditures
Student services 43,107,000    43,241,000       42,070,319    - 42,070,319 1,170,681 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures - - 181,262         - 181,262 181,262 

Other financing sources
Transfers in - 61,000 61,000           - 61,000 - 

Net change
   in fund balance - 61,000 242,262         - 242,262 181,262 

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 472,222         342,015            342,015         - 342,015 - 

Restatement 1,432,190      1,432,190         1,432,190      - 1,432,190 - 

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 - restated 1,904,412      1,774,205         1,774,205      - 1,774,205 - 

Fund balance at June 30, 2020 1,904,412$    1,835,205$       2,016,467$    -$ 2,016,467$    181,262$  

90



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Local government - tax levy -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Intergovernmental revenue

State 30,000 60,000             42,294 - 42,294 (17,706) 
Federal 54,000 96,000             95,290 - 95,290 (710) 

Institutional 282,000            4,450,000        4,441,905         - 4,441,905 (8,095) 

Total revenues 366,000            4,606,000        4,579,489         - 4,579,489 (26,511) 

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Instruction 5,204,000         4,680,000        4,785,407         (1,206,604)         3,578,803        1,101,197           
Instructional resources 14,088,000       11,448,000      9,565,618         2,255 9,567,873        1,880,127           
Student services 19,000 513,000           329,148            (3,637) 325,511 187,489 
General institutional 147,000            375,000           413,507            (42,457) 371,050 3,950 
Physical plant 22,494,000       21,731,000      18,946,531       (4,990,552)         13,955,979      7,775,021           
Auxiliary service 228,000            564,000           85,076 (45,755) 39,321 524,679 
Public service - 138,000 122,003            - 122,003 15,997 

Total expenditures 42,180,000       39,449,000      34,247,290       (6,286,750)         27,960,540      11,488,460         

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures (41,814,000)      (34,843,000)     (29,667,801)      6,286,750 (23,381,051)     (11,514,971)        

Other financing sources 
Debt issued 28,000,000       28,000,000      28,000,000       - 28,000,000 - 
Transfers in - 250,000 250,000            - 250,000 - 

Total other financing sources 28,000,000       28,250,000      28,250,000       - 28,250,000 - 

Net change in fund balance (13,814,000)      (6,593,000)       (1,417,801)        6,286,750 4,868,949        11,461,949         

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 13,814,000       19,265,756      19,265,756       (10,862,078)       8,403,678        (10,862,078)        

Fund balance at June 30, 2020 -$ 12,672,756$    17,847,955$     (4,575,328)$       13,272,627$    599,871$            
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Local government - tax levy 34,814,086$     34,814,000$      34,814,086$     -$ 34,814,086$     (86)$  
Institutional 1,500,000         590,000             589,176            - 589,176 (824) 

Total revenues 36,314,086       35,404,000        35,403,262       - 35,403,262 (738) 

Expenditures
Physical plant 36,402,120       36,500,000        36,499,200       - 36,499,200 800 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over
expenditures (88,034)            (1,096,000)         (1,095,938)       - (1,095,938) 62 

Net change in fund balance (88,034)            (1,096,000)         (1,095,938)       - (1,095,938) 62 

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 5,188,947         5,200,265          5,200,265         - 5,200,265 - 

Fund balance at June 30, 2020 5,100,913$       4,104,265$        4,104,327$       -$ 4,104,327$       62$  

92



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

NET POSITION - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis (Unfavorable)

Operating revenues
Local government - tax levy 115,000$       115,000$       115,000$       -$  115,000$        -$  
Intergovernmental revenue

Federal 2,700             2,700             2,626             - 2,626 (74) 
Auxiliary revenue 7,644,000      9,440,000      8,353,954      - 8,353,954 (1,086,046)         

Total revenues 7,761,700      9,557,700      8,471,580      - 8,471,580 (1,086,120)         

Operating expenses
Auxiliary services 8,015,000      11,566,000    9,411,939      - 9,411,939 2,154,061 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenses (253,300)        (2,008,300)     (940,359)        - (940,359) 1,067,941 

Non-operating 
revenues (expenses)
  Transfers in - 509,000 508,857         - 508,857 (143) 
  Transfers out - - - - - - 

Total non-operating 
revenues (expenses) - 509,000 508,857         - 508,857 (143) 

Net change in net position (253,300)        (1,499,300)     (431,502)        - (431,502) 1,067,798 

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 4,847,539      7,088,378      7,088,378      - 7,088,378 - 

Fund balance at June 30, 2020 4,594,239$    5,589,078$    6,656,876$    -$ 6,656,876$     1,067,798$  
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adjustment Actual on a Variance
Original Final to Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis (Unfavorable)

Operating revenues
Auxiliary revenue 15,945,000$     15,851,000$     14,731,983$     -$ 14,731,983$     (1,119,017)$      

Total revenues 15,945,000       15,851,000       14,731,983       - 14,731,983 (1,119,017)        

Operating expenses
Auxiliary services 16,545,000       16,535,000       14,522,740       - 14,522,740 2,012,260         

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenses (600,000)           (684,000)           209,243            - 209,243 893,243            

Non-operating 
revenues

Transfer out/(Other Uses) - - (3,373) - (3,373) (3,373) 

Total non-operating revenues - - (3,373) - (3,373) (3,373) 

Net change in 
net position (600,000)           (684,000)           205,870            - 205,870 889,870            

Fund balance at July 1, 2019 4,596,156         4,392,648         4,392,648         - 4,392,648 - 

Fund balance at June 30, 2020 3,996,156$       3,708,648$       4,598,518$       -$ 4,598,518$       889,870$          
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Balance Balance
7/1/2019  Additions Deductions 6/30/2020

CAREER/TECHNICAL STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 215,273$              163,634$            140,190$              238,716$             
Accounts receivable 204 74,439 74,643 -

TOTAL ASSETS 215,476$              238,073$            214,833$              238,716$             

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,096$  49,908$              45,908$  5,096$
Accrued liabilities - 26 - 26

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,096 49,935 45,908 5,123

NET POSITION 214,380 188,138              168,925 233,593

MARKETING CONSORTIUM

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 224,466$              1,226,999$         1,187,761$           263,705$             
Accounts receivable 21,535 569,939              585,349 6,125

TOTAL ASSETS 246,001$              1,796,938$         1,773,109$           269,830$             

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5,585$  342,687$            345,500$              2,771$
Accrued liabilities 1,423 179,097              180,521 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,008$  521,784$            526,021$              2,771$

NET POSITION 238,993 1,275,154           1,247,088             267,059

OTHER TRUST ACTIVITIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,331$  3,317$ 5,648$  -$
Accounts receivable - 1,640 1,640 -

TOTAL ASSETS 2,331$  4,957$ 7,288$  -$

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$  1,413$ 1,413$  -$

TOTAL LIABILITIES -$  1,413$ 1,413$  -$

NET POSITION - 227 227 -

TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 442,070$              1,393,950$         1,333,599$           502,421$             
Accounts receivable 21,739 646,018              661,632 6,125

TOTAL ASSETS 463,809$              2,039,968$         1,995,231$           508,546$             

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,681$  394,007$            392,821$              7,867$
Accrued liabilities 1,423 179,124              180,521 26

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,104$  573,131$            573,342$              7,894$

NET POSITION 455,705 1,466,837           1,421,889             500,652

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2020
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BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The District follows the procedures listed below in adopting annual budgets for all funds in
accordance with legal requirements.

! Property taxes are levied by the various taxing municipalities located primarily in South Central
Wisconsin.  The District records as revenue its share of the local tax when levied.

! Public hearings are conducted on the proposed budget prior to District Board approval.

! Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through approval by the District Board.

! Budget amendments made during the year are legally authorized.  Budget transfers (between
funds and functional areas within funds) and changes in budgeted revenues and expenditures
(appropriations) require approval by a vote of two-thirds of the entire membership of the Board
and require publishing a Class 1 public notice in the District’s official newspaper within 10
days according to Wisconsin Statutes.

! Management exercises control over budgeted expenditures by fund and function as presented
in the accompanying financial statements.  Expenditures by fund and function may not exceed
funds available, appropriated, or budgeted.  All budget amendments must be authorized by a
resolution adopted by a vote of two-thirds of the District Board.  Appropriations lapse at year-
end.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a planning device for all funds.  The District adopts
an annual operating budget that is prepared on a different basis from the financial statements,
which are prepared in accordance with US GAAP.  The budget differs from US GAAP by
recognizing encumbrances as expenditures.

(1) State grants revenue is presented on the basic financial statements as follows:

(2) Federal grants revenue is presented on the basic financial statements as follows:

State
Operating 4,360,701$        
Non-operating 73,957,246        

78,317,947$      

Federal
Operating 17,915,177$      
Non-operating (Gifts, grants and bequest) 1,182,717          

19,097,894$      
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(3) Institutional revenue is reported as seven separate line items on the basic financial
statements:

(4) Interest expense is reported as a component of physical plant on the budgetary
statements:

(5) Reconciliation of budgetary basis fund balance and net position as presented in the basic
financial statements:

Institutional revenue
Business and industry contract revenue 2,429,108$        
School District contract revenue 142,904             
Miscellaneous revenue 4,174,008          
Gifts, grants and bequest 5,110,356          
Cost reimbursements 50,044
Investment income earned 1,192,878          

13,099,298$      

Interest expense
Physical plant 20,151,735$      
Interest expense 4,154,967          

24,306,702$      

Budgetary Basis fund balance 83,999,455$      

General capital assets capitalized  $    476,380,976 
Accumulated depreciation on general capital assets       (195,317,119)
General obligation notes payable       (162,890,000)

     Accrued AP liability for Arbitrage (20,412)
Premiums on notes payable         (11,385,396)
Capital lease obligation (32,227)
Compensated absences         (12,495,064)
Accrued interest on bonds           (1,686,722)
Summer school tuition earned            1,078,820 
Summer school instructor wages paid              (504,029)
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end            4,575,330 
Net Pension assets (obligations)            3,203,906 
Net OPEB obligations         (23,123,748)
Refunding Loss            3,803,147 

Net position per basic financial statements 165,586,917$    
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as 
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, 
and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health. The 
information was prepared by the District and was not subject to audit by the independent 
certified public accounting firm.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
District’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional 
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District 
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The District implemented GASB 
Statement 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000; schedules presenting information 
prepared on an accrual basis include information beginning in that year.

Column Headings: The columns headed “Year” in this section refer to the District’s fiscal year 
(July 1 to June 30). Certain data included in this section is only available on a calendar-year 
basis; and if calendar-year data is presented, it is disclosed in the notes to the specific 
statement or schedule included in this section.
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Non-Aidable

Year
College 
Transfer

Associate 
Degree

Technical 
Diploma

Vocational 
Adult

Non-Post 
Secondary

Community 
Service Grand Total

2011 9,461         12,358       5,610         9,920         6,867           2,930         39,716         
2012 13,215       17,320       4,696         9,839         6,365           3,940         41,509         
2013 11,032       14,872       3,641         6,384         4,308           3,968         33,199         
2014 10,870       14,474       3,309         9,383         6,647           4,853         36,714         
2015 10,362       13,862       3,326         8,460         6,481           4,796         34,405         
2016 10,304       16,040       3,407         9,323         6,061           4,652         37,351         
2017 9,633         15,327       3,072         7,837         5,886           3,426         33,466         
2018 9,183         15,177       2,841         8,533         6,128           3,474         34,145         
2019 8,672         15,138       2,721         7,490         5,860           4,094         33,360         
2020 8,449         14,434       2,679         6,190         5,017           3,915         31,139         

Non-Aidable

Year
College 
Transfer

Associate 
Degree

Technical 
Diploma

Vocational 
Adult

Non-Post 
Secondary

Total 
Aidable

Community 
Service Total

2011 3,844         5,329         1,042         216            551              10,982       68              11,050         
2012 3,806         5,083         939            226            535              10,589       83              10,672         
2013 3,794         4,872         930            205            555              10,356       89              10,445         
2014 3,690         4,660         893            197            554              9,994         88              10,081         
2015 3,616         4,614         869            206            561              9,866         86              9,952           
2016 3,586         4,804         837            217            508              9,951         81              10,033         
2017 3,335         4,588         712            167            461              9,262         69              9,331           
2018 3,236         4,487         698            191            500              9,112         70              9,182           
2019 3,106         4,488         639            161            467              8,862         74              8,936           
2020 3,077         4,400         631            138            415              8,662         61              8,723           

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Aidable

Full-time Equivalents (b)

Aidable

Student enrollment represents the unduplicated count of citizens enrolled in District courses.  A student may be enrolled 
in more than one program, but is counted only once in the Grand Total.  Therefore, the Grand Total column does not 
equal the sum of the individual programs.

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Student Enrollment (a)

A full-time equivalent (FTE) is basically equal to 30 annual student credits based on a mathematical calculation, which 
varies somewhat by program and which is subject to state approval and audit of student and course data.
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Year Resident (1) Resident (1) Under Age 60* 60 and Over*

2010-11 142.20       213.30          106.00      159.00          130.96             104.76             
2011-12 150.00       225.00          111.85      167.80          137.51             110.00             
2012-13 158.25       237.38          116.90      175.35          162.52             130.00             
2013-14 165.40       248.10          122.20      183.30          187.82             150.26             
2014-15 170.35       255.55          125.85      188.80          210.00             168.00             
2015-16 173.75       260.63          128.40      192.60          260.00             208.00             
2016-17 176.35       264.53          130.35      195.53          260.00             208.00             
2017-18 178.80       268.20          132.20      198.30          260.00             208.00             
2018-19 181.50       272.25          134.20      201.30          260.00             208.00             
2019-20 184.60       276.90          136.50      204.75          300.00             240.00             

Additional Per Credit Fees
Material Fees

Supplemental Fee

Online Supplemental Fee

Textbook Rental Program Fee

Commuter Supplemental Fee

Academic Achievement Fee

Online Course Fee

Notes:

A supplemental fee is charged to all students enrolling in post-high school courses at Madison campus 
locations.  This fee is charged per s.38.14(9), Wisconsin Statutes and provides access to the MATC Fitness 
Center and supports co-curricular activities and programming, including student newspapers, athletics, 
performing arts, Student Senate, leadership programs, clubs and associations, the Programs and Activities 
Council, and the Student Life Office.  For Madison Campuses, the fee was set at $11.37 per credit for all 
Postsecondary & Vocational Adult credit courses and $14.50 per credit for all College Parallel credit courses.  
For Regional Campuses, the fee is $3.25 per credit for Fall and Spring semesters.

(1) The total per credit cost requires adding the resident fee to out-of-state tuition.  In addition, out-of-state
tuition excludes those students covered by reciprocal agreements.

Non-Aidable

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PER CREDIT PROGRAM FEES CHARGED
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Post Secondary 
Vocational AdultCollege Transfer

Fees for instructional materials consumed by students and instructors are required by s.38.24(1)(c), 
Wisconsin Statutes.  These material fees are to be charged to all students on a uniform basis unless 
exempted by state statute, administrative code, or State Board action.  There are material fee categories 
ranging from $4.50 per credit to $70 per credit.  Courses are assigned to one of the material fee categories 
based on the amount of instructional materials required for the course.  The minimum fee that is to be 
charged for any non-exempt enrollment is $4.50, regardless of the credit value.

There is also a $46.00 commuter supplemental fee charged to students taking at least one degree class at a 
Madison location during the Fall/Spring semesters to cover the costs of the Madison Bus and Paratransit 
program.  The fee for the Summer semester is $26.00.

The Academic Achievement Fee is $1.37 per credit for all Postsecondary and Vocational Adult credit courses 
and $1.85 per credit for all College Parallel credit courses.  These fees provide expanded service hours, 
personnel and self-service and online resources that support academic success at all campuses.

All online (internet-based) classes include a $10 per credit fee. 

Students taking 100% online courses that have residency in WI and MN reciprocity, they will be charged 
$3.25 per credit.  This is an addition to the online course fee.

For Degree students, the textbook rental program fee is $7.00 per credit.  This fee allows students to rent 
textbooks without having to purchase textbooks outright.
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Net Debt 
Outstanding

Percent 
Applicable to 

District (2)

Outstanding Debt 
Applicable to 

District
Adams County 11,510,000$           16.18% 1,862,318$          
Columbia County 53,895,000             99.90% 53,841,105          
Dane County 405,410,000           99.98% 405,328,918        
Dodge County 25,895,000             18.42% 4,769,859            
Green County 32,320,000             24.78% 8,008,896            
Iowa County 615,000 14.93% 91,820 
Jefferson County 13,560,000             87.78% 11,902,968          
Juneau County 21,623,685             9.37% 2,026,139            
Marquette County 10,404,999             98.00% 10,196,899          
Richland County 24,047,144             7.11% 1,709,752            
Rock County 48,730,000             0.19% 92,587 
Sauk County 11,310,000             98.51% 11,141,481          
Total Cities 1,010,041,945        Varies 996,328,064        
Total Villages 288,826,939           100.00% 288,826,939        
Total Towns 16,640,433             Varies 15,501,752          
Total School Districts 1,965,972,801        Varies 1,681,393,773     
Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District 107,414,339           100.00% 107,414,339        

Subtotal, overlapping debt 3,600,437,609     

District Direct Debt
General Obligation Notes 86,200,000          
General Obligation Bonds 76,690,000          
Premiums on Notes and Bonds 11,385,396          
Capital Lease 32,227 

Subtotal, District direct debt 174,307,623        

Total direct and overlapping debt 3,774,745,232$   

2019 Equalized Valuation - TID In

Direct District Indebtedness
Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness

Total Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness
    as a Percentage of Equalized Valuation

Population of District

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness - Per Capita

Source:  PMA, Inc

Notes:
(1)

(2)

For Year ended June 30, 2020

174,307,623          
3,600,437,609       

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the District is the equalized property value of property of the 
overlapping government located in the District as a percentage of total equalized value of all property for the 
overlapping government.

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

3.97%

798,053 

4,729.94$              

3,774,745,232$     

94,997,912,017$   

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the 
District.  This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is
borne by the residents and businesses located in the District boundaries.  This process recognizes that, when
considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the 
residents and businesses should be taken into account.  However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is 
a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

Name of Entity (1)

Statistical Summary
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5% 2%
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2020 Debt Limit Debt Limit

2019 Equalized Valuation - TID In 94,997,912,017$ 94,997,912,017$ 
x 5%  x 2%

Total debt limit - 5% of equalized valuation 4,749,895,601     1,899,958,240     

Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation notes 86,200,000          86,200,000         
General obligation bonds 76,690,000          76,690,000         
Less: debt service funds available (GAAP Basis) (2,417,605)           (2,417,605)          

Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit 160,472,395        160,472,395        

Legal total debt margin 4,589,423,206$   1,739,485,845$   

Legal Debt Margin, Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Debt Limit

Total net debt 
applicable to the 

limit Legal debt margin

Total net debt 
applicable to the 

limit as a 
percentage of 

debt limit

2011 3,642,741,706   102,424,455       3,540,317,251     2.81
2012 3,595,875,772   157,129,718       3,438,746,054     4.37
2013 3,527,370,020   170,521,512       3,356,848,508     4.83
2014 3,520,260,888   166,663,163       3,353,597,725     4.73
2015 3,633,897,981   172,390,261       3,461,507,720     4.74
2016 3,776,113,218   172,190,549       3,603,922,669     4.56
2017 3,930,618,713   168,841,623       3,761,777,090     4.30
2018 4,185,102,362   163,697,791       4,021,404,571     3.91
2019 4,443,135,295   162,199,302       4,280,935,992     3.65
2020 4,749,895,601   160,472,395       4,589,423,206     3.38

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

* The Wisconsin State Statutes Chapter 67.03(1) provides that the aggregate amount of
indebtedness of a District shall not exceed 5% of the value of the taxable property located in
the District. p g g
buildings and equipment may not exceed 2% of the value of the taxable property within the
District.
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Year

Amount
(in 

thousands)

Percent 
Increase/ 

(Decrease)

Full-Time 
Equivalent 
Students

Percent 
Increase/ 

(Decrease)
Per FTE 
Students

Increase/ 
(Decrease

)
Per FTE 
Students

Rank 
(1)

2011 151,943 5.5 11,050 2.2 13,750   3.6 13,010   12

2012 146,733 (3.4) 10,672 (3.4) 13,749   (0.0) 13,320   10

2013 156,006 6.3 10,445 (2.1) 14,936   8.6 14,005   12

2014 155,763 (0.2) 10,081 (3.5) 15,451   3.5 14,926   9

2015 158,985 2.1 9,952 (1.3) 15,975   3.4 15,618   9

2016 159,699 0.4 10,033 0.8 15,918   (0.4) 15,635   9

2017 157,671 (1.3) 9,331 (7.0) 16,898   6.2 16,181   13

2018 161,141 2.2 9,182 (1.6) 17,550   3.9 16,568   13

2019 164,929 2.4 8,936 (2.7) 18,456   5.2 16,756   13

2020 166,948 1.2 8,723 (2.4) 19,139   3.7 (2) (2)

(1) Rank among 16 WTCS districts.  (#1 is the lowest)
(2) Not yet available.
(3) For purposes of this computation, operational expenditures is based on the budgetary expenditures from the

District's General and Special Revenue-Aidable funds.  The State removes payments for prior service costs to
the Wisconsin Retirement System.  There are also various other adjustments that the State makes for this
computation which are immaterial and not considered here.

MATC Operational 
Expenditures per 

Student

Statewide 
Operational Costs 

per Student

MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES PER FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) STUDENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Operational Expenditures (3) 

(General and Special 
Revenue-Aidable Funds) Student Enrollments
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MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Columbia County less the portion of the School District of Markesan; Dane County less the portion 
of the Barneveld School District and the Pecatonica Area School District; Jefferson County less the 
portion of the Oconomowoc Area School District, the Palmyra-Eagle Area School District and the 
School District of Kettle Moraine; Marquette County less the portion of the School District of 
Princeton and the School District of Markesan; Sauk County less the portion of the School District of 
Hillsboro, the School District of Ithaca and the School District of Weston; plus the portion of the 
School District of Wisconsin Dells in Adams County; the Columbus School District, the Randolph 
School District, the Waterloo School District and the Watertown Unified School District in Dodge 
County; the School District of Belleville, the School District of New Glarus and the Oregon School 
District in Green County; the Wisconsin Heights School District, the Mount Horeb Area School 
District and the River Valley School District in Iowa County; the School District of Reedsburg, the 
School District of Wisconsin Dells and the School District of Wonewoc and Union Center in Juneau 
County; the River Valley School District and the School District of Wonewoc and Union Center in 
Richland County; and the Oregon School District and the Stoughton Area School District in Rock 
County.

Madison Area Technical College - Madison
Truax - Main District Campus, 1701 Wright Street,

Madison, Wisconsin 53704

Goodman South Campus, 2429 Perry Street
Madison, Wisconsin 53713

Commercial Avenue Education Center, 2125 Commercial Avenue,
Madison, Wisconsin 53704

Fire Service Education Center, 1750 Pearson Street,
Madison, Wisconsin 53704

West Madison Education Center, 8017 Excelsior Drive
Madison, WI 53717

Madison Area Technical College – Columbus
Emergency Vehicle Operator Instructional Facility

W2140 Krause Road, Columbus, Wisconsin, 53925

Madison Area Technical College - Fort Atkinson
827 Banker Road, Fort Atkinson, Wisconsin, 53538

Madison Area Technical College - Portage
330 Collins Street, Portage, Wisconsin 53901

Madison Area Technical College - Reedsburg
300 Alexander Avenue, Reedsburg, Wisconsin 53959

Madison Area Technical College - Watertown
1300 West Main Street, Watertown, Wisconsin 53098
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